M MEETING AGENDA

Est. 1873

PLAN COMMISSION
Wednesday, October 11, 2017
7:30 P.M.
MEMORIAL HALL — MEMORIAL BUILDING
(Tentative & Subject to Change)

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. MINUTES - Minutes of September 13, 2017

3. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
a) Case A-25-2017 — 55" St./County Line Rd. — Hinsdale Meadows Venture, LLC —
Detailed Plan and Special Use Permit for a 64-unit residential Planned Development.
b) Case A-34-2017 — 16 Grant Square — Kramer Foods — Exterior Appearance/Site Plan
review for front facade alteration to existing grocery store.

4. SIGN PERMIT REVIEW
a) Case A-35-2017 — 4 N. Washington St. — Chase Bank — New Wall Sign Replacement

5. EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW
a) Case A-29-2017 — 336 E. Ogden Ave. — Bill Jacobs Land Rover — Exterior
Appearance/Site Plan review for new Land Rover Dealership (replacing Land Rover at
300 E. Ogden) (continuation from September 13, public meeting)
b) Case A-36-2017 — 52 S. Washington Street — Green Goddess — Exterior Appearance/Site
Plan Review for a front fagade alteration to existing retail store.

6. PUBLIC HEARING - All those wishing to provide public testimony must be sworn in and after
the applicant makes their presentation will be recognized by the Chair to speak.
a) Case A-33-2017 — 21 Salt Creek Ln. (former Robert Crown Center) — Hinsdale Humane
Society — Special Use Permit for Animal Humane Society

7. ADJOURNMENT

The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990. Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who
have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to
contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to
allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. Web
Site: www.villageofhinsdale.org



http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/

Approved

MINUTES

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
PLAN COMMISSION
September 13, 2017
MEMORIAL HALL
7:30 P.M.

Chairman Cashman called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, September 13, 2017,
in Memorial Hall, the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.

PRESENT: Chairman Cashman, Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner
Jablonski, Commissioner Peterson, Commissioner Willobee, and
Commissioner Crnovich

ABSENT: Commissioners Braselton, Fiascone & Unell

ALSO PRESENT: Chan Yu-Village Planner; Robb McGinnis-Director of Community
Development

Approval of Minutes
With no questions or concerns, the PC unanimously approved the minutes from the August 9, 2017,
meeting 5-0 (3 absent, 1 abstained).

Findings and Recommendations - Case A-23-2017 — 5819 S. Madison St. — Plate28 — Special Use Permit
for 1,400 SF fitness studio. Chairman Cashman asked for any comments, none were noted. The PC, with no
questions, unanimously approved the Findings and Recommendations as submitted, 6-0 (3 absent).

Sign Permit Review - Case A-30-2017 — 50 S. Washington St. 2" FL. — NL Decorator — New Window
Signs. The PC had no concerns or questions for the request, and unanimously approved the sign
application as submitted, 6-0 (3 absent).

Sign Permit Review - Case A-31-2017 — 33-37 S. Washington St. — Starbucks — 2 Sign replacements.
The applicant representative gave a brief description of the signs requested in the application. He stated the
first sign was to replace an existing sign with the same size and style. A change of color was noted. The
second sign requested would be suspended under a canopy and replace an existing window sign. The PC
asked for clarification of material and color of the proposed signs and noted no other concerns. The PC
unanimously approved the sign application as submitted, 6-0 (3 absent).

Sign Permit Review - Case A-32-2017 — 30 E. First St. — Verizon — 1 new Wall Sign. The applicant
presented the sign request and demonstrated examples of illuminated letters for the PC to view. The
examples demonstrated were low profile channel letters but varied in brightness. Keeping in mind the
addition of future businesses in the building, the PC preferred the diffuser lit sign because of the softer
illumination provided and requested the sign illumination be limited to VVerizon hours of operation or as late
the FedEx (also located in Garfield Crossing) operation hours. The PC unanimously approved the sign
application as submitted for illumination option 2, with the condition of the illumination hours to its business
hours, or as late as the FedEx Office business hours, 6-0 (3 absent).
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Sign _Permit Review - Case A-27-2017 — 301 W. 59™ St. — Hinsdale Apartments — Ground Sign
replacement. The applicant presented an updated ground sign and illumination options to the PC. The first
and preferred option presented incorporated more white on the background yet still containing some black to
compliment the building finishes. The updated sign request incorporated LED illumination that would
provide a halo light that could be dimmed down to approximately 15%. No light would shine out from the
sign and the sign would be on a timer to set from 7:30-10 p.m. The sign would be placed in approximately
the same location at a height of four feet. The second sign option contained a larger amount of black in the
color design and the second illumination option was ground lit. The PC unanimously approved the sign
application as submitted for illumination option 1, 6-0 (3 absent).

Schedule of Public Hearing - Case A-23-2017 — 21 Salt Creek Ln. (former Robert Crown Center) —
Hinsdale Humane Society — Special Use Permit for Animal Humane Society. The PC unanimously
approved to schedule a public hearing for Case A-23-2017 for the October 11, 2017 PC meeting, 6-0 (3
absent).

Exterior Appearance & Site Plan Review - Case A-29-2017 — 336 E. Ogden Ave. — Bill Jacobs Land
Rover — Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review for new Land Rover Dealership (replacing Land Rover
at 300 E. Ogden). The architect, Jerry Mortier, on behalf of the applicant, reviewed the site plan and
building plans to the PC. He reviewed that the building envelope and parking lot will essentially stay the
same. The facade of the building and the floorplan will be redeveloped to Land Rover specifications. He also
reviewed the parking lot, fence and lighting of the site plan. The fence options would be either 6 foot or 8
foot high, whichever best suits the community. Sound concerns for the site could be reduced by no longer
using the existing PA system and switching to Nextel Radio devices. The number of light poles in the lot
would remain the same & the locations were indicated to the PC. Most poles would be located in the front
area of the lot with the exception of 1 light pole along the residential side for security purposes.

There were approximately 5 neighbors who live in the residential neighborhood south of the subject property
who expressed concerns for the proposal. The concerns focused on the sound of the additional traffic,
machines and tire sounds coming from the overhead door facing south, where serviced cars would enter and
exit to an area with 19 car lifts and a car wash space. A blend of functional & aesthetics of the fence on the
cul-de-sac, speed of “test drives” and child safety were concerns of neighbors. The delivery times for parts
and cars was also a concern by the neighbors, and complained that the current Land Rover site receives
deliveries at 2 AM. To that end, the PC Chair also requested that the refuse area be relocated away from the
residential district and be enclosed in a solid material. The Village Attorney is reviewing if the potential
Ordinance can limit delivery hours.

The PC Chair recommended that the applicant install new plants around the perimeter of the lot, versus
simply maintaining the existing plants. In addition presenting the revisions to resolve the issues expressed by
the neighbors, the Chair also requested the applicant bring in material samples for the building facade plans.
A commissioner also recommended that he would like to see a traffic study completed for the new use. The
PC suggested the applicant look at glare shield options for lighting, provide cut sheets for wall mounted and
post lights, and evaluate the timing of illumination. The applicant was also asked to provide additional
options of the exit location to service area to reduce noise and light to Franklin St. cul-de-sac residents in an
effort to achieve a better balance between maximum number of service bays and noise/light reduction for
neighbors.

The PC unanimously continued the item for the October, 11, 2017 PC meeting, for revisions and
information by the applicant to resolve the concerns expressed by the neighbors and PC, 6-0 (3 absent).
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Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review Case A-34-2017 — 16 Grant Square — Kramer Foods — Exterior
Appearance/Site Plan review for front facade alteration to existing grocery store. The applicant
presented the exterior and site plan request to the PC. A Commissioner asked if the new entrance/exit meets
the building/fire code. The applicant reviewed that the new entrance/exit actually increases the foot traffic
capacity. The PC had no additional concerns.

The PC unanimously recommended approval for the exterior appearance/site plan application as
submitted, 6-0 (3 absent).

Public Hearing - Case A-25-2017 — 55" St./County Line Road. — Hinsdale Meadows Venture, LLC —
Detailed Plan for a 64-unit residential Planned Development. The applicant reviewed the topics of what
has progressed and completed since the last public hearing on August 9, 2017. Progress on engineering
approval, the developing agreement with RML Hospital for the fence/gate between the property and the
agreement reached with the Parks and Recreation Committee in relation to field improvements were
discussed. There were no general concerns by the PC after the presentation.

However, a Commissioner noted the previous lack of discussion about fences in the development and a
commissioner expressed concern that fences would take away from the open feel of the community
development. Ed James explained that only the single family homes (no duets), with approval by the
association, could install a 4-foot tall black “wrought iron style” fence. The fence cannot be installed in front
of the front facade of the home, would have a wide gate opening allowing mowers to pass through and be
low enough to maintain an open space feel.

With no other questions, the PC unanimously recommended approval for the Detailed Plan, with the
requested waivers, 6-0 (3 absent).

(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-25-2017 included as part of this record)

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 9:14 PM, after a unanimous vote.

Respectfully Submitted,
Jennifer Spires, Community Development Secretary
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) Ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
In the Matter of:
HINSDALE MEADOWS VENTURE,
55th St/County Line Road

Special Use Permit
Case No. A-25-2017.

~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~—

CONTINUED REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and
testimony taken at the hearing of the above-
entitled matter before the Hinsdale Plan
Commission, at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale,
Illinois, on September 13, 2017, at the hour of

7:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;
MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member;
MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member;
MR. SCOTT PETERSON, Member;
MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member; and

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member.
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1 ALSO PRESENT:
1 prepareit. And this is for the property on
2 MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner; 2 their side of the fence not our side.
3 MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of 3 So that has been -- that's in
Community Development; 4 progress and they are working on that and I
4 L}
MR. MICHAEL MARRS, Village Attorney: 5 can't tell you how long that may take, but we
5 6 have provided an easement from our property
6 MR. EDWARD R. JAMES, Applicant; 7 across the right-of-way, across the parkway to
MR. MICHAEL BALAS, Edward James 8 the RML property and that is at the village
7 Company; 9 attorney for approval.
8 MR. TERRENCE SMITH, Applicant's Land oozzsaem 10 We have also entered into a
Planner. 11 construction agreement with RML Hospital and
9
12 that has been approved and it's between the two
10 13 parties as to what we are doing with the fence
14 and the gate and the maintenance and the
11 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Case A-25-2017, 55th
12 Street and County Line, Hinsdale Meadows 15 installation and what have you; and again, we
13 Venture, LLC, and this is a detailed plan and 16 have worked very well with the hospital.
14 special use permit for a 64-unit residential )
15 planned development and we continued this from 17 Mr. Pawola, their CEO, Pat Geary have been very
16 our August 9th meeting and I'm not even sure 18 cooperative and we have a good relationship with
17 what number meeting we are on in this process. 19 th
18 But I appreciate your patience and seems like we em.
19 are getting closer to an end. wzszuem 20 We have been working diligently
oz 20 (WHE,R,EUPON’ the oath was 21 with the KLM park and recreation board and as of
21 administered en masse.)
22 MR. JAMES: We are here tonight to 22 last night, they approved the recommendation,
91 93
1 update you on the progress since our last 1 their recommendation, at our approval. And
2 meeting. You have a letter from me dated 2 basically what it is is we are going to use our
3 September 6th in which we outline seven items on 3 excess dirt from excavation, we will store it on
4 which we were working and tonight we have six 4 our property as opposed to storing it on
5 items to review or to bring up. I can put them 5 their's.
6 on the board or you can refer to them in your 6 After looking at fields 1, 2, 3,
7 packet, whichever you like. 7 the 2 fields, 1 and 2, were the fields running
8 While Mike is doing that, for 8 on an east-west orientation and field 3 was on a
9 discussion tonight and review, the final 9 north-south orientation and north of the
waoew 10 €ngineering for Hinsdale Meadows has been wauwen 10 eXisting regulation field.
11 approved by staff. 1 What we are going to do is -- what
12 The table of compliance has been 12 they have decided to do is to deal strictly at
13 approved by staff. 13 this point with field 3 and that is the one
14 3. The emergency access easement 14 north of the existing regulation field. We will
15 from RML Hospital has been submitted to the 15 create a new regulation size field along with a
16 village attorney for approval. 16 swale and berm that will replicate the existing
17 I want to explain this. RML 17 swale and berm currently east of their
18 Hospital leases the land from Cook County and 18 regulation field so as to be sure not to have
19 they cannot, after speaking with their president 19 any water runoff or what have you that might go
wzwew 20 @nd Pat Geary, who both have been very waswen 20 ONto the neighboring properties in Burr Ridge.
21 cooperative, they cannot enter into any easement 21 And that's all been engineered and designed and
22 agreement that we prepare only Cook County can 22 everybody has approved it and they approved it
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1 last night with one exception to our letter, and 1 words in their mouth, but many of them liked the
2 -- not an exception but we all approved that. 2 idea of the rolling land, the topography and the
3 Instead of having a series of evergreen trees 3 trees and weren't sure they wanted to change it,
4 every 30 feet along the berm to block the view 4 but they will make that decision at a later
5 and what have you, the forester has asked to 5 date.
6 have a variety of trees which would include 6 And then when we get sufficient
7 evergreens and deciduous and what have you, and 7 dirt, if we have sufficient dirt to do both
8 we are perfectly comfortable with that. We 8 fields, then we would bring it in. And the
9 don't know what the spacing will be, it will 9 agreement also says that if we don't have
wszen 10 depend on the type of tree and what have you, wazen 10 sUfficient dirt and they still want the fields
11 but I haven't been able to get ahold of our 11 done, they would be responsible for bringing in
12 landscaper today and check but he said it could 12 the additional dirt at their cost.
13 be done and there could be 3 and 4-inch trees 13 The fields will be turned over to
14 that will go and 8-foot evergreens is what we 14 the parks and recreation committee when the
15 contemplate. 15 grass is 70 percent grown. Watering, they will
16 So we are very happy that they 16 be fenced so that nobody can go on them and it
17 approved that and I think it's going to be an 17 grows properly. The fields will be regulation
18 excellent program for them. We did learn that. 18 with a less than 2 percent grade change or
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So instead of 19 slope, whatever you term it. The watering will
wssen 20 Modifying three fields or two fields, you are wasew 20 cOme from the existing fire hydrant that is now
21 modifying just the one? 21 there between fields 1 and 2 and we will use
22 MR. JAMES: I'm going to come to that. 22 that water and the village will supply the water
95 97
1 That's the second part. 1 for us so we can sprinkle appropriately with
2 The one benefit that we thought, we 2 temporary sprinklers.
3 just learned about it last night, was that the 3 So all in all that's pretty much
4 parks and recreation committee does receive 4 Dbasically the system, but if they decide not to
5 revenue from the use of their one regulation 5 go ahead with fields 1 and 2, then we have said
6 field. With a second regulation field, they 6 we will truck off the excess dirt that we have
7 will be able to hopefully increase that revenue 7 and get rid of it, or if they want it for future
8 and keep more people coming to that field 8 use on some other project, we would be glad to
9 instead of going elsewhere because all they have 9 transport it and stockpile it on their side
wmoen 10 IS ONE. wmoew 10 Wherever they want it.
11 When we expect to start the fields 1 But at that point in time, if they
12 we will start when we get sufficient dirt 12 didn't do fields 1 and 2, our commitment would
13 stockpiled on our property and there's 13 be completed and that would be the end of the
14 sufficient dirt to do field 3 and the ideal time 14 public benefit, the completion of the public
15 to do it, which is what we have all agreed to, 15 benefit.
16 is between July 1st and August 15th. We will 16 So we are very happy with that.
17 fence the field and make sure that we are 17 And that's the synopsis of it. I don't think I
18 properly working all of that. 18 made a mistake. IfI did --
19 When we finish the field, at that 19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So you met last
wnsew 20 poiNnt in time, we will ask the parks and wasew 20 Night with parks and rec?
21 recreation committee if they want to move ahead 21 MR. JAMES: Yes.
22 with fields 1 and 2. And I don't want to put 22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Anything going
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1 tomorrow? 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I would just ask,
2 MR. JAMES: You don't really want to 2 it's been brought up to me and I said, you know,
3 know, do you? 3 we talked about so many things I don't remember
4 So anyway, we are very happy. We 4 talking about that. And I would just like you
5 think -- personally, I think they have made a 5 to at least discuss when it gets to the board
6 right decision. I think you can retain the 6 level that you discuss that, the issue of
7 beauty of that park, and it is pretty, but they 7 fences.
8 are also going to get a very good playing 8 MR. JAMES: We have many granddogs and
9 surface, a second one, which I think will be a 9 we appreciate the fact that we had a fence where
wxzew 10 revenue producer that will go on and on and on wszew 10 we lived before and it was very convenient, let
11 for which we think that's a good deal for us and 11 them out, they do their thing and come back and
12 a good deal for the village. 12 we know where it is and we can clean it up.
13 And then the development agreement 13 MS. CRNOVICH: I'd like to comment that
14 is with the village attorneys and between our 14 I'm not that thrilled about the fences. I think
15 attorney and they are going over the details, 15 one of the goals of a planned unit development
16 but I don't think there's too many issues out 16 is open space and I think that kind of takes
17 there left outstanding. We did make the 17 away from it, especially being like an age-
18 changes. They were minor in change to the 18 targeted community. I think with the dogs you
19 homeowner declaration. And that's about it. 19 can get electric fences. Fences do you have to
n—1 | CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: The homeowner wasen 20 have to fence with a single-family home.
21 declaration is it a law permitted to put fences 21 MR. JAMES: It's just on the single
22 like if I own one of the single family, can I 22 family. If you look where the single families
99 101
1 have fences? 1 are, they face onto County Line Road or to 55th
2 MR. JAMES: Yes. Yes. For the single 2 Street and they would back up to the SimTek
3 family homes we have said that we will for the 3 fence that we are going to put there. And then
4 homeowners who have dogs, or what have you, and 4 we have the homes along the pond and there will
5 they may not want to walk them every single day, 5 be sufficient open space beyond the fence area
6 we have allowed -- we have said that we would 6 and that 24, 25, I can't remember the number,
7 permit the fence to extend from the corner of 7 includes the patio area. So that's about 10 or
8 the building out to either 24, 25 feet, whatever 8 12 feet. So it's only about a few feet beyond
9 itis, in some cases maybe 24, 25 feet, and then 9 that and no wider than the ends of the houses
woxew 10 COMe back and it has to have an entrance wide waeew 10 @nd it will be no higher than 4 feet and it will
11 enough for the lawnmowers to get through for the 11 be a black wrought iron, aluminum simulated
12 maintenance and the homeowners' association will 12 wrought iron.
13 maintain them. We will not allow fences on the 13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I have lived in
14 duplex homes only on the single family homes. 14 houses with fences and without fences. So I'm
15 And that will be subject to our approval as a 15 kind of on the fence on this one. It's
16 developer when we are building and selling and 16 something we just never talked about.
17 the homeowners' association at a later date. 17 MR. JAMES: We have been in this
18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Would a fence be 18 business a long time and I can remember the days
19 able to come forward from the front elevation of 19 when we didn't allow pets or dogs into
waew 20 the house? waoew 20 @partments or buildings or what have you, and
21 MR. JAMES: No. Nothing in the front 21 then we modified that many, many years ago. And
22 atall. Only in the rear areas. 22 we said that -- first of all, the pet has to be
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1 a certain size and all the rest of it and has to 1 4-inch spacing?
2 be properly cared for and everything. But we 2 MR. JAMES: Yes. And they will
3 said you can bring your pet with you, you just 3 probably have at the low level the smaller
4 don't replace it because pets are important to 4 inserts so smaller dogs can't go through. We
5 people, whether they are young or old, they 5 have been there. We are good there. You learn
6 become a family member and this policy has 6 the hard way.
7 worked out extremely well and now many, many, 7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Scott?
8 many buildings have this. In fact, they even 8 MR. PETERSON: I'm good.
9 have dog areas in the apartment buildings in the 9 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jim?
wwszew 10 City and so forth, but we are not contemplating p—— ] MR. KRILLENBERGER: No more comments.
11 that. We are just trying to make it easy for 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: We have talked about
12 them to move. They don't have to get rid of 12 this for quite a while. I remember when this
13 their dog and he or she doesn't have to walk it 13 all started. I really appreciate your -- I
14 every single day other than when he or she wants 14 think we really have -- this has been a good
15 to. But it's a convenience and we think it's 15 process. I appreciate your patience.
16 going to work okay. If we didn't, we wouldn't 16 We have gone through, talked about
17 do it; we would just say no. But we think it's 17 so many different things related to this
18 a reasonable approach and that's part of our 18 project. ButI think in the end I thought we
19 declaration. 19 were able to come up with a nice solution that
wsanzrn 20 MS. CRNOVICH: Well like Steve said, I weww 20 balance with what you are proposing with the
21 don't recall talking about the fences before. 21 needs and concerns of the commissioners and the
22 MR. KRILLENBERGER: It's nice that they 22 neighbors who spoke. It was nice to hear the
103 105
1 are limited to four feet. That keeps a sense of 1 neighbors that were interested in purchasing
2 open space in the community. 2 your properties, and I think it's time to call a
3 MR. JAMES: Oh, yes. And they will be 3 vote on this matter.
4 double width gate so that the maintenance people 4 Robb, anything we need to address?
5 can getin and out. We will maintain the yards 5 MR. McGINNIS: No. I would only add
6 to the extent that we planted them. Now, if 6 that once this lines up in front of the board of
7 they want to put a little garden or flowers, 7 trustees and they approve the detailed plan,
8 that's up to the individuals to maintain, but we 8 there's yet another step, it's an administrative
9 do all the lawn mowing and what have you. 9 review as part of the permit review process.
wwasozem 10 Mike, anything else? wwaosen 10 So if there are conditions set in
1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Comments, questions 11 the approval, there will be another check on
12 by commissioners? 12 this before we actually issue permits. I just
13 Mark? 13 wanted to have that out there.
14 MR. WILLOBEE: I think I asked most of 14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Sort of hate to see
15 my questions last time. 15 the first one ribbon cutting.
16 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Julie? 16 MR. JAMES: T'll do it from my
17 MS. CRNOVICH: No. Just about the 17 wheelchair.
18 fences. Sorry, I don't like the fences. 18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I know. And I
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jerry? 19 appreciate all the effort that the village
wwasziem 20 MR. JABLONSKI: If the purpose of the waeew 20 €ngineers and the planning department and Chan
21 fence is for dogs and sounds like small dogs 21 and our legal, what everyone has been involved
22 would be allowed, wrought iron fencing with 22 in this because it's a team process and I really
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1 appreciate you working with the parks and rec on 1 STATE OF ILLINCIS )
2 this public benefit which I'm excited for. 1 ) ss:
2 COUNTY OF DU PAGE )
3 have been over on those fields and I think that
4 Katherine Legge is a great resource that we have 3 I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
5 in the village and it's great that you are 4 Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
6 helping us with that and improving that and I 5 County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby
7 appreciate that. 6 certify that previous to the commencement of the
8 MR. JAMES: Thank you. And we have 7 e>_<amination an_d testimony of the various
8 witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
9 enjoyed working with all of them. I can't tell 9 testify the truth in relation to the matters
wseen 10 you how helpful they have been. We had to tow 10 pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
11 the mark, yes, but it's all been for the 11 said witnesses was reduced to writing by means
12 betterment and we think we have a good project 12 of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
13 and we are delighted. 13 typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Thank you. 14 true, correct and complete transc_ript of my
15 shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.
15 MR. MARRS: Mr. Chairman, before you 16 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
16 make a motion, I just want to clarify in your 17 hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial
17 agenda it talks about the special use but the 18 seal this 19th day of September, A.D. 2017.
18 special use was actually approved at the 19
19 original. So the motion we are really looking 20
KATHLEEN W. BONO,
waewew 20 fOr is recommend approval of the detailed plan 21 C.S.R. No. 84-1423,
21 and the accompanying waivers. Notary Public, DuPage County
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Perfect. You got 22
107
1 that, Chan?
2 So I'd like a motion to approve the
3 detailed plan as submitted and the accompanying
4 waivers.
5 Do I hear a motion?
6 MR. JABLONSKI: So moved.
7 MR. KRILLENBERGER: I'll second.
8 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jim?
9 MR. KRILLENBERGER: Aye.
10 MR. PETERSON: Aye.
11 MR. JABLONSKI: Aye.
12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Aye.
13 MS. CRNOVICH: Aye.
14 MR. WILLOBEE: Aye.
15 (WHICH, were all of the
16 proceedings had, evidence
17 offered or received in the
18 above entitled cause.)
19
20
21
22
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE
PLAN COMMISSION
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

September 13, 2017

RE: Case No. A-25-2017 - Planned Development Permit Detailed Plan
Approval & Approval of Associated Waivers and Variations —
55" Street/County Line Road, Hinsdale, lllinois

PETITIONER: Hinsdale Meadows Venture, LLC

APPLICATION: For detailed plan approval and approval of associated waivers and
variations relative to the previously approved concept plan and
special use for a 64-unit residential planned development consisting
of duplexes and single-family homes, on property located in the R-2
Single-Family Residential Zoning District, at the southeast corner of
55" Street and County Line Road, Hinsdale, lllinois

BACKGROUND: The 24.5 acre site at the southeast corner of 55" Street and County Line
Road, Hinsdale, lllinois (the “Property”) is located in the R-2 Single-Family Residential Zoning
District. A number of years ago, the Property was platted for a conventional development of
36 single-family homes. While roads and utility services were installed, only one (1) single-
family home was ever completed, and two (2) were patrtially constructed on the Property.

In early 2017, Hinsdale Meadows Venture, LLC (the “Petitioner”) received approval for a text
amendment allowing planned developments as a special use in any residential zoning district,
as well as approval, in Ordinance No. 02017-08, of a Planned Development Concept Plan and
a related Special Use permit approval of a 64-unit residential planned development consisting of
duplexes and single-family homes on the Property (the “Planned Development”). The Planned
Development was approved as an age-targeted development, meaning it is designed and
intended to attract empty-nester residents.

The Concept Plan for the Planned Development that was ultimately approved was for
twenty-one (21) new single family homes, one (1) existing traditional single family home that will
remain on the Property, and forty-two (42) duplex homes, for a total of sixty-four (64) units.
Based on grade, the proposed homes may have a lookout basement, standard basement, or
walkout basement (or, if a Buyer prefers, no basement). All new homes feature a first-floor
master bedroom and two bedrooms on the second floor (3 bedrooms total).

The Planned Development will utilize the existing road configuration and infrastructure, with
some minor modifications to the utility services, as well as the existing detention pond.

APPLICATION: The current application (the “Application”) seeks Detailed Plan approval, as
well as approval of certain waivers and variations from the Village of Hinsdale Zoning Code (the
“Zoning Ordinance”) relative to the Planned Development.

The current Application, inclusive of the Detailed Plan and all Developer submittals during the
course of the Public Hearing, is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and made a part hereof. A Table
of Compliance detailing the various waivers and variations (“Waivers and Variations”) sought by
Developer is attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and made a part hereof.
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PUBLIC HEARING: A public hearing on the Application was opened on August 9, 2017, and
continued to and concluded on September 13, 2017. At the duly and properly noticed Hearing,
testimony was taken and heard by the Plan Commission on the Application. All persons
testifying during the Hearing were sworn prior to giving testimony. All persons wishing to be
heard were given the opportunity to ask questions of the other witnesses and to provide
testimony on their own behalf. Subjects discussed during the Public Hearing included the
building elevations, features and dimensions, dimensions of proposed lots, perimeter fencing,
landscaping, the traffic study results, table of compliance, garage design, water retention and
detention, the emergency access easement with RML Hospital, the plans for improvements and
grading of fields in adjacent KLM Park, the redevelopment agreement with the Village, the
Homeowners Association declaration and covenants, and fencing. Transcripts of the Public
Hearing are attached hereto as Exhibit 3 and made a part hereof.

At the portion of the public hearing held on August 9, 2017, several members of the public
spoke or asked questions concerning pricing of units and traffic. Another resident spoke about
his positive experiences with the Petitioner living next to the undeveloped Property for the past
12 to 15 years, and another expressed his support for the proposed Planned Development.
There being no further questions or members of the public wishing to speak on the application,
the Public Hearing was closed.

MOTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: Following discussion by the Plan Commission, a
motion was made by Commissioner Jablonski, seconded by Commissioner Krillenberger, to
recommend approval of the Detailed Plan as submitted, as well as the associated Waivers and
Variations sought by the Petitioner. The Plan Commission vote on the motion was six (6) in
favor, and zero (0) opposed.

FINDINGS ON DETAILED PLAN APPROVAL: The Plan Commission, based upon the
evidence presented at the Hearing, and pursuant to Section 11-603(D)(3)(e) of the Hinsdale
Zoning Code, makes the following Findings as to the Detailed Plan:

1. The Detailed Plan is in substantial conformity with the previously approved Concept
Plan. The Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the Detailed Plan over the course
of two (2) meetings and finds this standard to have been met;

2. The Detailed Plan complies with all conditions imposed in Ordinance No. 02017-08
approving the Concept Plan. The Plan Commission finds all conditions set forth in the
Ordinance approving the Concept Plan have been met; and

3. The Detailed Plan complies with the provisions of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, and all
other applicable federal, State and Village codes, ordinances and regulations. The Plan
Commission finds this standard to have been met.

FINDINGS ON WAIVERS/VARIATIONS TO REGULATIONS: The Table of Compliance
detailing the Waivers and Variations sought by the Petitioner is attached hereto as Exhibit 2
and made a part hereof. The Plan Commission, based upon the evidence presented at the
Hearing, and pursuant to Section 11-603(H) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, makes the following
Findings as to the Waivers and Variations to regulations sought as part of the Planned
Development:
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1.

The Waivers and Variations will achieve the purposes for which planned developments
may be approved pursuant to the Hinsdale Zoning Code. This Planned Development
has been the subject of an extensive review and approval process. Detailed findings
relative to the Planned Development are set forth in the Plan Commission findings and
recommendations in Case No. A-18-2016. This standard has been met;

The Waivers and Variations will not violate the general purposes goals and objectives of
the Hinsdale Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan. This Planned Development has
been the subject of an extensive review and approval process. Detailed findings relative
to the Planned Development and its consistency with the purposes, goals and objectives
of the Zoning Code are set forth in the Plan Commission findings and recommendations
in Case No. A-18-2016. This standard has been met; and

The Waivers and Variations, as proposed, will result in a development providing
compensating amenities to the Village. The Waivers and Variations shall facilitate the
Planned Development and the compensating amenities provided to the Village by the
Planned Development.

RECOMMENDATION:

Based

on the Findings set forth above, the Plan Commission, by a vote of six (6) in favor

and zero (0) opposed, recommends to the President and Board of Trustees that the
Detailed Plan and associated Waivers and Variations sought by the Petitioner as part of
the construction of a 64-unit residential planned development consisting of duplexes and
single-family homes, on property located in the R-2 Single-Family Residential Zoning
District at the southeast corner of 55" Street and County Line Road, Hinsdale, lllinois, be

APPROVED.
Signed:
Stephen Cashman, Chairman
Plan Commission
Village of Hinsdale
Dated:
384855 1 3



TABLE OF COMPLIANCE - Hinsdale Meadows

Address of subject property: SE Corner of County Line Road and 55th Street

The following table is based on standard R-2 Zoning District requirements, as compared to the proposed Hinsdale
Meadows Planned Development. For purposes of listing the waivers shown below, the figures shown represent
maximum or "worst-case" level of waiver requested for each requirement.

A further description and/or rationale for each required waiver is shown in the "Footnotes/Description/Rationale"
column on the Explanation of Requested Relief page attached.

Minimum Code Proposed - Single Family Proposed - Duplex Homes
requirements Homes
Minimum Lot Area (s.f) 20,000 10,000/ reduction of 10,000 15,000/ reduction of 5,000
Minimum Lot Depth 125 125 125
Minimum Lot Width 100' 56.5'/ 77.8'/
reduction of 43.5' reduction of 22.2'
Building Height 30' <30’ 30.17'/ increase of 0.17'
Building Elevation 35.5 Single Family 40.75' for walk out units / 42.92' for walk out units /
36.25' Duet increase of 5.25' increase of 6.67'
Number of Stories 3 3 3
Front Yard Setback 35' 30' / reduction of 5' 30' / reduction of 5'
25' for lots 7,8,9,10, & 11/ 25' for lots 12 & 13 /
reduction of 10' reduction of 10’
Corner Side Yard Setback 35' 30' / reduction of 5' 30' / reduction of 5'
Interior Side Yard Setback 14.02' SF 8' / reduction of 6.02' 9' / reduction of 5.42'
14.42' Duet
Combination Side Yard Setback 39.06' SF 16' / reduction of 23.06' 18' / reduction of 18.93'
36.93' Duet
Rear Yard Setback 50' 35' / reduction of 15' 25' / reduction of 25'
30' along pond / reduction 15' (Lot 41) due to corner
of 20' lot and existing storm
sewer / reduction of 35'
Maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 268,234.25 304,810.52 / increase of 36,576.27
Maximum Building Coverage 25% 29.62% / increase of 4.62% 30.4% / increase of 5.4%
Maximum Total Lot Coverage 50% <50% <50%
Parking Requirements N/A N/A N/A
Parking front yard setback N/A N/A N/A
Parking corner side yard setback N/A N/A N/A
Parking interior side yard setback N/A N/A N/A
Parking rear yard setback N/A N/A N/A
Loading requirements N/A N/A N/A
Accessory Structure information N/A N/A N/A
Local deletion of floor and roof trusses 2006 IRC: R502.11 & Requested for inclusion Requested for inclusion
(providing suppression in-lieu of solid- R802.10
sawn lumber)
Trees Required in Parkways Village Code Section 11-1-13(C) Pertains to entire development. Pertains to entire development.
Refer to Exhibit G of the Developer Refer to Exhibit G of the Developer
Agreement. Agreement.

Findings & Recommendations Exhibit 2




STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) Ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
In the Matter of:
HINSDALE MEADOWS VENTURE,
55th St/County Line Road

Special Use Permit
Case No. A-25-2017.

~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~—

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony
taken at the hearing of the above-entitled
matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at
19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on

August 9, 2017, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;
MS. DEBRA BRASELTON, Member;
MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;
MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member;
MR. SCOTT PETERSON, Member;
MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member; and

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member.
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1 ALSO PRESENT:
1 was a 64-unit concept which is what the current
2 MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner; .
2 planis.
3 MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of 3 So when it went to the trustees,
4 Community Development; 4 they investigated and I think even in our
MR. MICHAEL MARRS, Village Attorney; 5 discussions we wanted them to still look at that
5 ) - .
MR. EDWARD R. JAMES, Applicant; 6 price point issue so they did, and then they
6 7 basically went through a couple of rounds and
MR. MICHAEL BALAS, Edward James . .
7 C . 8 came back with more of the duplex units, the
ompany;
9 kind of space that we are looking at today.
8 MR. BRETT DUFFY, Applicant's Project . .
Engineer; wo2ew 10 Obviously they have been working.
9 1 We talked before about stormwater
MR. JOE SAFIN, Applicant's Architect;
10 12 and all that and now we have the detailed civil
MR. TERRENCE SMITH, Applicant's Land 13 drawings, we have detailed landscape drawings.
11 Planner.
14 You can see they have utilities, issue about
12 15 utilities easement along 55th Street and
13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Case A-25-2017, 55th 16 electrical service, the sound wall that's being
14 Street and County Line Road, Hinsdale Meadows 17 proposed there.
15 Venture, LLC, detail plan and special use permit
16 for a 64-unit residential planned development. 18 And one thing I want to just open
17 And this is our second pass as a 19 this with is in attachment, the cover letter you
18 planned development. Starting back about a year
19 ago, I believe you started this process with wown 20  saw that the applicant was asking for us to not
wozew 20 James Company and at that time we were looking 21 vote on this tonight because there's still some
21 at preliminary concepts so that we could look at
22 it and ultimately it went to the board of 22 parts that are still being developed. I'm not
3 5
1 trustees so they could evaluate it and now 1 sure if I have the right terminology, but
2 basically we had four meetings at the plan 2 basically the second item was the request for
3 commission and then it went to the trustees, and 3 the plan commission to affirm a final decision
4 1 believe they had at least two meetings, and 4 and/or approval two items before the next plan
5 then it was approved for them to develop it as a 5 commission meeting. No. 1, the proposed final
6 detailed development which then gets into all 6 development agreement in order to allow
7 the engineering, landscaping, much more detail 7 additional time to respond to comments from the
8 on the elevations in the plans. 8 village attorney and to provide the opportunity
9 So the real focus in this round is 9 for the village parks department and the
woroew 10 really focusing on a detail plan. We had four wazew 10 developer to review and approve the schedule of
11  meetings that went on to about 10:30 for each 11 the final design details for the proposed KLM
12 one. I think the biggest part was on the 12 park development improvement.
13 concept in general and a lot on the special use 13 You may recall that one of the
14 permit about open space, about density. 14 benefits was the leveling of the three cross
15 When it left us in, I believe it 15 fields that are on the north end of KLM. Many
16 was January, it was a 59-unit development and 16 of your kids were involved in lacrosse over
17 comments that had come back then were about 17 there. It's a very interesting field because
18 price point on the duplex units and then when it 18 it's sloping downhill so I don't know which way
19 went to the trustees -- actually, when we 19 you are facing.
woeew 20 finally voted and it moved on to the trustees, osoasern 20 So there's detail in here about
21 we had a 59-unit, which was the original, and 21 they will be using some of the spoils from this
22 then we had a packet that was submitted which 22 project and then phase in over time as this
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6 8
1 development grows and it becomes available they 1 We do have a short presentation to
2 would then level one field at a time keeping the 2 bring you up-to-date visually, and even though
3 field in play for the park district and the 3 you did a great job, Mr. Chairman, in covering
4 lacrosse clubs. 4 what's happened since we last met with you, and
5 What I'd like to do tonight is let 5 we do look forward to discussion and answering
6 the applicant give us an update. I appreciate 6 any questions both myself and our professionals
7 all the information. This is quite a package. 7 if you have them.
8 Thank you. It almost threatened Chan's back in 8 As the chairman so eloquently put
9 the process of delivering this to the 9 it, the concept plan was increased from 59 units
wuwen 10 CcOmMmMissioners. And then I want to have an woen 10 t0 64 units and the basic reason was to put in
11 opportunity for any community members to give us 11 more duplex homes in a location that I'll
12 their opinion on this. 12 mention in a moment. And so we ended up with 42
13 We had over the period of the four 13 duplex homes, 21 buildings and 22 single-family
14 meetings previously we probably covered about 14 homes, including the one existing single-family
15 six months in total, we had a lot of input, most 15 onlot 1. And lot 1 is right there. And the 4
16 in email speaking for or against the concept, 16 single-family duplex buildings were on County
17 and I know also at the board of trustees level 17 Line Road in that location and they actually
18 after we reviewed it. With that, good to see 18 replaced 5 single-family homes so we had one
19 vyou again. 19 less building on County Line Road.
wsosaoen 20 MR. JAMES: Thank you. You have done a p—1 The other two changes were we took
21 great job. I can just sit down. 21 two single-family homes on lots 12 and 13 and
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: This is for people 22 changed those to duplex units and the result was
7 9
1 it's been a long process and people who weren't 1 to increase the number of duplex homes and
2 part of this and we have some new commissioners 2 decrease the number of single-family and by
3 that are aware of this through the newspaper 3 virtue of doing that, we were able to and we
4 coverage and then they have had plenty of 4 feel comfortable that we will be able to get our
5 reading material over the last month. 5 duplex prices homes down into the mid to low 8
6 Mark, you jumped in halfway through 6 hundreds and we are very, very comfortable with
7 our previous process. And so Jerry and Debra 7 that and happy with that.
8 are new to the process. We had two 8 This is an overview of the areas
9 commissioners, Julie unfortunately is sick today 9 that we had in mind. This is the new duplex,
wosew 10 SO she wasn't able to make it and Troy had a wasew 10 this is the old single-family. Here's the other
11 business commitment out of town. 11 single families that we changed.
12 MR. JAMES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 12 We will be going through the final
13 welcome Plan Commissioners. I look forward to 13 plat and final engineering and you can't see
14 talking with you more. 14 these but they are here and in your book and so
15 My name is Edward James. I'm with 15 we have talked about the final plat, the
16 Hinsdale Meadows Venture. And this evening we 16 engineering and grading plan, the utility plan
17 have with me Michael Balas, vice-president chief 17 and the final landscape plan. We will get into
18 financial officer of Edward R. James Companies; 18 that in just a little bit more later.
19 Brett Duffy, engineer with SpaceCo, Inc., our 19 The detailed plans, in short, will
wossew 20 project engineer; Terry Smith, our land planner wozew 20 Show that we have retained as much of the
21 or landscape architect with BSB Design; and Joe 21 existing infrastructure and landscaping as
22 Safin, architect with BSB Design. 22 possible and along with putting in the new
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1 improvements that have to go in to accommodate 1 the first elevation A. Second elevation is B
2 the additional homes, the different side yard 2 and this is a side-load garage and then the
3 and configurations of the homes. 3 floor plans. You will notice again in the floor
4 You have seen elevations but I 4 plans they are all open living, which most
5 don't know that you have really studied them too 5 everybody is gravitating to at this time. The
6 much, but we did have input from three 6 formal dining room it's a wonderful room but
7 architects at large from the village and we were 7 with the young families coming and going, it's
8 very appreciative of that and we tried to 8 not used very much but there is space here for
9 incorporate some of their suggestions although 9 dining but the area is open.
wown 10 they were very positive for the most part and we wisoon 10 And then the next elevation is the
11 were pleased with that. 11 Torrington. This is one of the larger homes.
12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I know I was one of 12 This is the first elevation. You can see the
13 the three that looked at all the different 13 different garage door configurations. This is
14 concepts and I gave you some feedback and then 14 the two single doors where some of the other
15 it was Dennis Parsons and -- 15 garages are double doors. This is the B
16 MR. McGINNIS: Jim Prisby. 16 elevations. And then this is the floor plan for
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So they sent up 17 this home. These are all in your book.
18 uploaded PDFs which were kind of the starting 18 This is the Woodbridge, another
19 point which we have seen before and then the 19 side load. It's our A elevation and the B
woon 20 three of us looked at it, we gave comments, weon 20 €levation. Not very dramatic names but they get
21 emailed back to him and then there were some 21 the job done. And then the floor plan for this
22 modifications to the drawings of the different 22 house. Now, on the right side you will see the
11 13
1 concepts. 1 second floor and there's some options there.
2 MR. JAMES: Mike has just put up the 2 People can change it around if they want to.
3 materials board for you to see. And on the 3 And then we have introduced a ranch
4 screen we are going to go through the five floor 4 home. There was a request for a ranch home and
5 plans or buildings that we have showing you the 5 we heard you loud and clear and so this home
6 various elevations for each and then the floor 6 will fit on the same foundation and the same lot
7 plans and then what happens to the rear when we 7 size as the Torrington, the one you previously
8 have them on sloping lots and we have window 8 had seen. We only have one elevation of this
9 walkout or standard basements. 9 now, but we will be coming up with a second
wwnzeen 10 This is the New Haven, and it's our wuxew 10 €levation for it as well.
11 elevation A. This is the same house with an 1 MR. JABLONSKI: How many square feet
12 elevation B. And then this is a floor plan. 12 will that be?
13 They are all three bedrooms, two and a half bath 13 MR. JAMES: 1 think about 2,300 square
14 and every home in the entire development will 14 feet. It's a nice plan. It's in your book I
15 have a first floor master bedroom. So it is, in 15 know.
16 fact, age-targeted. And this home right now -- 16 All of the homes have decks, an
17 all of our homes, different homes will not go on 17 option for a screened-in porch or a sun room and
18 every lot and in your packet you will see where 18 we tried to show what they would look like.
19 specific homes can be built and if it's not 19 The plan on the upper left-hand
weoew 20 mMarked as such, then one of these models could wszew 20 COrner that's a standard deck. The plan in the
21 not be built on that lot. 21 upper right-hand corner is a screened-in porch
22 The next home is the Ridgefield, 22 option. And then the lower left is the standard
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1 deck with the optional stair going down if the 1 may not want a stair.
2 home is on a lot that requires a walkout or a 2 The table of compliance has some
3 window basement and the walkout and window 3 changes to it and brought about by the final
4 basements are a function of the topography of 4 engineering and then working with staff as to
5 the site and the fact that we have to do 5 the details involved with the plans and some of
6 something to handle that grade change. And then 6 the site configurations.
7 the lower right is the sun room option. 7 The minimum lot width the previous
8 The duplex have both front and 8 was 56 feet for the single-family. The new is
9 side-loaded garages. This building has the 9 56.5 feet. The duplex previous was 85 feet and
wien 10 front-loaded garage on the right side and the weoew 10 the new is 77.8. Now, these are minimums and
11 side-loaded garage on the left. 11 just because we have gone down from 85 to 77
12 And here is the same building, same 12 that's not standard. That may be one particular
13 plan but it has two front-loaded garages. And 13 lot. So we have given you the worst option not
14 this is necessary to be able to build it on the 14 an average or a standard, what have you.
15 lot, there's not enough room in the side yard to 15 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: That's pretty much
16 have a driveway and a turnaround and what have 16 throughout all of this. I know I was talking
17 you. So pretty much wherever we could put a 17 with Robb about this and Chan is I like this
18 side yard in, we have done it and the rest are 18 approach. Worst-case scenario every one of
19 front loaded. 19 these. You don't know exactly what is going to
werssien 20 The duplex floor plans are wocew 20 be built but if this is approved, it's approved
21 standard. The interior partitions could be 21 under the worst-case conditions and then the
22 moved or so forth but no real changes inside 22 market will determine what ultimately is built
15 17
1 because they are one building and the upstairs 1 out there. Likely not the worst-case scenario,
2 shown on the left has some options to it but 2 but it would be something less.
3 they are pretty standard as well. And those 3 MR. JAMES: We will get into that in
4 average about 2,400 square feet. One is 23 4 more detail when I get to the FAR and building
5 something, the other is 25 something. 5 coverage as well.
6 And here again we have the standard 6 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Back to the comment
7 deck, which you could see in the upper left-hand 7 about also not voting on this tonight, I thought
8 corner, the upper right-hand corner we have a 8 it was also because the staff is still going
9 screen porch option. That deck has been closed 9 through the detailed review of this document.
wroew 10 iN, it becomes a screen porch. And then the osz00em 10 MR. McGINNIS: That's correct. We are
11 lower left is a standard deck with the optional 11 getting close but there were still some changes
12 stairs going down. Now, those stairs are 12 as recently as last Thursday. We are close but
13 optional. Some people may not want them, others 13 we are not quite there yet with respect to
14 might. And then the lower right is a sun room 14 identifying each of those waivers and how much
15 option. 15 they are asking for.
16 MR. JABLONSKI: Will each owner be able 16 MR. JAMES: The average width of the
17 to choose whether he or she wants the stairs? 17 single-family lot, now this is an average, is
18 MR. JAMES: Yes. But if the building 18 74.2 inches and the average width of the duplex
19 is a standard-type building that's going to have 19 building is 102 feet 4 inches. And the lot
woeew 20 @ window basement and a walkout basement, both wauew 20 Width is measured at the front yard of the
21 units will have the same basement configuration 21 setback line and then a minimum single-family
22 they can't change but one may want a stair, one 22 lot, which we refer to above as lot 31, and
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18 20
1 that's on a cul-de-sac at the far south end by 1 the walkout basements.
2 the park. It's a pie-shaped lot and widens up 2 The front yard setback -- and I'm
3 significantly as it gets deeper and we can show 3 going through this is the table of compliance
4 that later. 4 that we are going through. The front yard
5 The minimum lot width for lot 12 is 5 setback the minimum code is 35 feet. The
6 on 55th Street whose front yard was set back, 6 previous request was 30 feet and we are now
7 was moved back to 25-foot setback from the 7 requesting 25 feet for specific lots and for a
8 30-foot setback as originally proposed. 8 specific reason. We are talking about lots 7,
9 The building heights, the final 9 8,9,10and 11, as you can see on the screen
=20 100 €ngineering plans required us to calculate the wuce 10 right there on 55th, and also lots 12 and 13,
11 height based on the code definitions and the 11 believe.
12 waiver request that we are asking for is due to 12 MR. BALAS: Yes. That's correct.
13 the grade conditions in the final grading plan. 13 MR. JAMES: The reason that we are
14 The new height is 30.17 inches and the issue 14 doing that is it's an engineering plus an
15 that we are dealing with here, and we are 15 aesthetic plus some other considerations. But
16 working well with staff, is that the site was 16 basically, the overland flow for the property,
17 previously graded for Sedgwick, the previous 17 the natural drainage, goes from County Line/55th
18 zoned community, yet the streets and the curbs 18 east along the property line at the backyards of
19 were already installed and they are fixed and 19 those homes and it's an overland drainage and
wzan 20 they are not going anywhere so that's really wuwew 20 When looking at the engineering more closely, it
21 setting the grade for those. Yet when you -- if 21 was determined that the rear yard beyond the
22 you measure the existing grade that is called 22 patio was going to be at a pretty good steep
19 21
1 for in the code, the existing grade is the 1 decline or incline going up or going down.
2 property adjacent to the curb that's already 2 So to offset that we are going to
3 been lowered to accommodate the pad for the 3 propose two things. One, we move those homes
4 previous development. So we are working with 4 from instead of 30 feet back from the interior
5 that and I think we have -- we are working well 5 road 25 feet back. You probably won't notice it
6 with staff on that and we hope it won't be a 6 but they will all be the same and that gives us
7 problem. 7 a chance to provide a more level rear yard for
8 The building elevation, the minimum 8 the homeowners but it also allows us, which we
9 code is 35.5 feet and the walkout units are 9 will get into later, to install the screen wall
wzeen 10 40.75, an increase of 5.25 feet. The building wsoew 10 fence in a location that doesn't restrict the
11 elevation is a new addition to the table of 11 overland flow of the water, the natural flow
12 compliance and it was put in by the village 12 which will end up down into our detention basin
13 staff. The elevation height information was 13 and into the pond. So this wasn't a decision
14 provided during the concept plan and approval 14 that we just came out of the blue with. It was
15 process. The variance, as I said a moment ago, 15 thought about, talked about, and most of the
16 is really due to the existing topography and the 16 landscaping along those lots will come out and
17 need to provide walkout basements. 17 it will be relandscaped and we think -- we know
18 The duplex building, the minimum 18 it's a valuable asset and so we are going to be
19 code is 36, 20.25 and the walkout units are 19 requesting that.
wuzew 20 42.92, an increase of 6.7 feet but that's again wszsoeen 20 Then we get into the corner and
21 coming from the back with the walkout basements. 21 side yard setbacks the minimum code is 35 feet.
22 Again, the variance is due to the topography and 22 The single-family the same 30-foot setback is
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1 requested that was in the first case and the 1 But I want to make this
2 duplex the same 30-foot setback as was asked for 2 observation. We have agreed, and we have no
3 before. 3 problem with it, that any basement -- no
4 The interior side yard setback, the 4 basement can include a bedroom or a full bath.
5 single-family minimum code is 14.02 inches and 5 So there's no opportunity, even though we are
6 we request an 8-foot side yard or a 6.2-foot 6 being penalized on the FAR to change the
7 reduction and the minimum code for a duplex is 7 character of that basement. If a person wants a
8 14.2 and we are requesting a 9-foot side yard or 8 recreation room and a closed basement, it's
9 a reduction of 5.42. The figures shown 9 going to be the same recreation room and an open
wusen 10 represent the maximum yard setback compared to | ««wu 10 basement but he or she can't put a full bath
11 the code requirement. And the minimum code 11 down there. You can put a half-bath powder
12 requirements of 14.2 and 14.42 are based on lot 12 room, but you can't have a bedroom down there.
13 width and staff updated the 10-foot previously 13 So we are talking with staff about that and we
14 shown as a minimum requirement. We understood 14 would ask you to take that into consideration
15 it was 10-foot, now it's 14 but we are working 15 when you look at the fact that the FAR is over
16 with that. We think we can resolve it. 16 what might be allowed.
17 Now we come to, I believe, the 17 When it comes to maximum building
18 floor area ratio. That's the FAR. And the 18 coverage, the code requirement is 25 percent.
19 total single-family and duplex equal 19 The single-family is 29.62, or an increase of
wnon 20 304,810.52 feet, an increase of 36,576.27. And woon 20 4.62 percent, and that refers specifically to
21 the way the FAR was calculated, as Chairman 21 lot 9 and that would be along 55th Street. And
22 Cashman said, we have taken the worst possible 22 the duplex is 34, or an increase of 5.4 percent,
23 25
1 case, the largest home that can be built on any 1 and that refers to lot 10, which is a duplex.
2 individual lot, we have added every option, the 2 So the maximum building coverage as
3 screened-in porch, to increase the FAR in that 3 we did in the FAR concept includes the largest
4 regard and so it can only get better if somebody 4 building, the largest house, all of the options
5 picks a smaller house instead of the largest 5 on the lots and the combined building coverage
6 house on a particular lot. But this increase, 6 percentage over all the lots at Hinsdale Meadows
7 the 36,000, is also impacted by the basement 7 including the existing single-family on lot 1 is
8 square footage. The lower areas of the home 8 24.89 percent.
9 account for 47,000 feet of lower level basement 9 So the single-family waiver request
wnsew 10 @rea and that's primarily due to the existing wasoew 10 iS based on the Torrington built on lot 9 and
11 grades of the contours of the land. 11 the duplex waiver request is for lot 42 which
12 But let me make a point here. The 12 has 15,009 square feet. The maximum total lot
13 code defines basements as cellars, windows and 13 coverage is 50 percent and single families are
14 walkouts and the rationale for that -- I'm not 14 50 and duplexes are 50.
15 going to try to interpret it, but a cellar would 15 What's on the screen now is we have
16 be a standard basement, no windows other than 16 done some research and we have looked closely at
17 the escape well and what have you. A window 17 the fences that people have put on their
18 would be a slight decline where you have English 18 properties to reduce the sound or the visual
19 basement you can see out but you can't walk out. 19 impact or what have you, and we came across this
wnzew 20 And @ walkout basement is where the land is wmeew 20 product, which we call a screen wall, and it's a
21 really falling away and you put sliding doors 21 faux stone wall and you can see it here and we
22 and you can walk out. 22 are proposing to remove the fence along 55th and
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1 replace it with this stone wall as you can see 1 they don't have a problem with it and that will
2 samples of it and these happen to be on Willow 2 also be on the gate which is the next -- no,
3 Road in Northfield or Glenview and we have seen 3 it's not.
4 it elsewhere. It's very attractive. You can 4 We have had discussions with RML
5 landscape around it. It acts as a sound 5 and the staff and I think with the fire
6 barrier. It acts as a visual barrier. It will 6 department and what have you. As you know, RML
7 be 8 feet high and very attractive when you 7 is going to be doing an addition to their
8 drive by it. 8 hospital, their campus site. And they have an
9 This particular location on Willow 9 issue with their expanded footprint or whatever
wseew 10 IS right next to some other material fences and swsow 10 that they are concerned that fire and emergency
11 so forth and it stands out beautifully and so 11 vehicles coming in off of County Line Road may
12 even though it's very expensive, we are going to 12 not be able to get around or access as fast or
13 request that we be permitted to use that wall on 13 as quickly as they would like to from County
14 55th Street. It will extend from lot 7, the 14 Line Road going through their property. We
15 building on the far left, to the single-family 15 don't know the details, but what we are asked to
16 home on the far right, but then it will step 16 do was would we put a gate in our fence that
17 back under 12 and 13 to protect the large clump 17 accesses their parking lot so that emergency
18 of trees that are already there. We are not 18 vehicles could come in through Barton Lane and
19 going to take those down, we are going to save 19 then go through that gate and access the far
s 20 them. We are going to bring the wall back. wsaew 20 €astern end of their property. And we think as
21 And slide 16 you can see we are 21 good neighbors, and good citizens and worried
22 going to transplant a great many trees, and I'll 22 about safety, what have you, there's no reason
27 29
1 getinto that, and remove many trees, and I'll 1 not to do it and we have pretty much agreed with
2 getinto that as well. 2 the hospital that we would do that and share the
3 Then along the hospital property 3 cost and we are going to put in the grass bricks
4 line, as you can see on the left slide, we have 4 or grass pavers where the grass comes through it
5 the existing faux wrought-iron aluminum fence. 5 so as we drive down our road, you will see grass
6 Here again we are going to leave that fence but 6 but there's a base there for the heavy vehicles
7 we are talking with the hospital and so far they 7 to cross. Only the emergency vehicles will have
8 are in agreement with this. We are going to put 8 access to the gate. It's either a break through
9 this black cloth that blocks the view of their 9 or a key operation or electronic, whatever comes
ws2ew 10 parking lot and headlights and what have you wwoew 10 UP With, but no one else will go through it at
11 coming into the property, and what have you, and 11 all and the hospital is going to do the same
12 of course would have landscaping in front of it 12 thing on their side. So we are very happy with
13 and behind it, but it does block it and that's 13 that and we are working well with them and will
14 what we will put on the entire perimeter fence 14 be asking for that.
15 of the hospital and Hinsdale Meadows. 15 Then the tree preservation and
16 Again, the picture that you see 16 transplanting schedule. These are just some
17 here is a long fence along Willow Road, lovely 17 numbers that I would like you to pay attention
18 area and it just looks just fine. Drive by it 18 to and listen to and hopefully you can
19 and landscaping around it and you don't even 19 appreciate them.
weoew 20 kKnow it's there. So we will be asking for that. weanzorm 20 We have already planted many, many
21 And we have been talking -- the 21 trees along the parkway and elsewhere in the
22 hospital knows this we have talked about it and 22 development when it was previously zoned for
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1 Sedgwick. We will leave in place 75 trees. We 1 and in the management end of it for many, many
2 will transplant 30 trees. We will remove 24 2 years, we understand homeowner's associations
3 dead trees, and we will plant 34 new parkway 3 and what they may want, what they may be looking
4 trees with a total parkway tree completion there 4 for. And the worst thing a developer can do is
5 will be 139 trees on the parkway in our 5 well, I'm going to avoid that, let them worry
6 property. And here again, we believe -- we 6 aboutit. That's not the way we do business.
7 appreciate being able to leave the trees that we 7 We will have an agreement with the hospital. It
8 already planted, they are matured, they have 8 will spell out for the homeowners, it will spell
9 been there ten years or longer, and we will be 9 out for the hospital who is responsible for
ssew 10 @dding to it, removing and pulling out many s 10 What, sharing the maintenance and what have you,
11 others. 11 and it will all be done so they can see it. We
12 The next issue is the use of 12 don't want them coming back to you at a later
13 trusses and for both the floors and the roof 13 date saying, you know, why didn't you do this
14 trusses in the buildings. 14 and then all of a sudden you are in trouble with
15 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Robb, this is really 15 your neighbors and friends. We just don't do
16 a building code issue. 16 that. So we would rather tell you about it now
17 MR. McGINNIS: It is but it's a waiver. 17 and delay it until we can get it done.
18 We have a local ordinance that prohibits 18 And then finally the traffic study,
19 trusses. There was a quid pro quo in 19 we submitted a complete study several months ago
wwesew 20 CONjunction with the fire department they agreed wexen 20 @nd you have had that, but just to give you the
21 to fully suppress those buildings in the quid 21 highlights of that traffic study.
22 pro quo that we would consider them using these. 22 The proposed Hinsdale Meadows
31 33
1 MR. JAMES: Right. In return for using 1 traffic the projected is 270 average daily trips
2 the trusses, which it's faster, it's better, 2 perday. That'sin, out, all day long. The
3 it's done in a factory, in a plant and 3 previously approved development 36-single family
4 everything is in a jig and it comes out right, 4 Sedgwick homes would have generated they
5 okay. There's no human error involved. We are 5 suggested 410 average daily trips per day. So
6 going to sprinkle the units, fire retardant 6 this is a reduction in the average daily traffic
7 sprinkler system, which we think is a wonderful 7 of 140 daily trips in and out even though we
8 trade-off. Better for the homeowners and better 8 have more units. It's the makeup of the unit,
9 for us in both cases in terms of the quality of 9 the type of people that will be living there.
wozxew 10 CONstruction and the fire protection. owaszzew 10 You know what, I think that's the
11 The Hinsdale Meadows declaration, 11 end of our short presentation. Now, you can ask
12 homeowner's declaration is being revised, minor 12 all the questions. All of my consultants are
13 changes, and they will include the fact that we 13 here to answer if I can't. Thank you.
14 now have 64 units, the fact that we have a gate 14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: What I'd like to do
15 operation. The gate operation we have a 15 first is see if there's any community members
16 maintenance agreement with the hospital that's 16 that would like to speak on this matter so we
17 putin there so the homeowners aren't surprised 17 can hear their concerns. Please come up and
18 later on and neither is the hospital. 18 state your name, your address at the microphone.
19 As I said before, we stand here in 19 MS. BHAT: My name is Vigaya Bhat, and
waeew 20 @ fiduciary responsibility and that is that we wasew 20 I'M a resident of Hinsdale, and we are looking
21 have to think about what the homeowners want and 21 for empty-nester home, or whatever it's called,
22 having been in this business for now 61 years 22 and we are anxious to find out what they offer
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1 for us. 1 MS. BELLETETE: Good evening. My name
2 My question is: Is it an age -- 2 is Aleta Belletete. It's on the sign-in sheet.
3 what is the age restriction to get into this, 3 Ilive at 1200 Laurie Lane, and I have lived
4 and also is it gated community and is that 4 there for about 21 years. I have lived in the
5 assessment monthly or annual, something like 5 Hinsdale area my whole life. I'm a product of
6 that? And my husband may have some questions. 6 Oak, EIm middle school and Hinsdale Central.
7 This is what I just can think of right now. 7 I share those facts with you just
8 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: This was really a 8 to let you know that I'm not interested in
9 big area of discussion previously when we did 9 selling my property and the value of it, I'm
«wov 10 the concept plan: Age-targeted versus age- waoew 10 going out feet first and I love the area. So
11 restricted. So this is an age-targeted 11 I'm here as a supporter and lover of the area
12 development. There are no age restrictions on 12 and a concern that I have as a Laurie Lane
13 this development. 13 resident is that currently even without the
14 The second question gated. It's 14 development when we try to turn left out of
15 not a gated community. There's no gates at the 15 Laurie Lane during peak times, it can be an
16 two entrances. And the last, I believe in the 16 inordinately long time. And now with 200 some
17 documents is says approximately $200 a month. 17 more trips, and I don't know if that includes
18 MR. JAMES: In the mid $200, yes. At 18 nannies and lawn service people and what have
19 this point, yes. 19 you, but even if it includes all of that, we are
——1 | MS. BHAT: We have to ask somebody to wrwen 20 gOing to be growing old just at that
21 be on the waiting list. 21 intersection.
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: All their 22 So is there an opportunity to
35 37
1 information if you go to the village website 1 during peak hours not have right turns out of
2 this entire packet is on the website under the 2 the exit going out onto 55th Street or, more
3 plan commission and all their information is 3 important for the residents of this group, if
4 there and if you contact Chan after the meeting. 4 you try at those peak times to be on County Line
5 MR. JAMES: I'm going to give you this. 5 Road heading toward 55th Street, right now you
6 This is not a marketing. This is just for your 6 don't have that many cars cutting through to get
7 information. That has the site plan and it's 7 past the light. Because it doesn't look
8 the same elevations and homes and where they can 8 developed, people don't know what's there. They
9 be built, but we are not in the marketing phase. 9 are afraid they might get glass in their tires.
wsszew 10 We are not going there because that would be wezew 10 But now it's a developed community, I would
11 presumptuous on our part and we just don't do 11 encourage you there similar to out in front of
12 that. 12 the hospital and other places where it says only
13 MS. BHAT: One more question. How many 13 residents can turn in because that will only add
14 single homes? 14 to. If you can't help us out with not getting
15 MR. JAMES: There are 22-single family 15 hit by -- not getting clearance as we come out
16 homes, one of which is the existing home on lot 16 of Laurie Lane, minimally help by not adding
17 1 and the remaining 21 will be new cluster 17 even more than their projected cars with people
18 homes, again, all with first floor master 18 who are trying to shortcut the light and not
19 bedrooms. 19 have to wait.
weaszzen 20 MS. BHAT: Thank you. oeasien 20 So whatever you could do to think
21 MR. JAMES: Thank you. 21 about a current situation that's bad now for the
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Thank you, ma'am. 22 folks that live on Laurie Lane would be greatly
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1 appreciated. And we thank you for your time and 1 answer that, but I bet some of the younger
2 consideration. 2 people on our street could. But I am up by
3 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So the difficulty is 3 4:30, 5:30 in the afternoon and it's bad in the
4 going westbound out of Laurie Lane or -- I can't 4 rush hour times, very bad, and will also be bad
5 think of the next street over. 5 for them.
6 MS. BELLETETE: Woodview. 6 What happens is when they get out,
7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Woodview. I was 7 then we really can't go anywhere because now we
8 curious when I was looking at the traffic study 8 are going to hit them if we turn, which is why
9 for this it has basically access to 55th Street 9 I'm suggesting maybe restrictions on certain
www 10 @and to County Line that if I was living there wszew 10 peak hours and minimally putting something on
11 and it was difficult to go out onto 55th Street 11 55th Street that would keep people from dodging
12 and turn left, I would try to go out on County 12 the light and then it would be a great source of
13 Line and turn right and then go westbound at the 13 revenue for you in terms of ticketing, I would
14 intersection of County Line and 55th Street. 14 think, if you put that up.
15 Are you ever forced to go all the 15 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: When you are talking
16 way down to Plainfield? 16 about people dodging the light, are they dodging
17 MS. BELLETETE: Yes. And that's a long 17 it on 55th Street trying to go southbound on
18 way, actually. Twisted roads, long way and 18 County Line.
19 that's time and, you know, I'm old, retired and 19 MS. BELLETETE: They would be trying to
wwsew 20 probably have time. wssew 20 gO east. They are coming this way, they have
21 The concern is getting to the 21 already waited. I'm not waiting through another
22 hospital. I know you can call 911 but you are 22 light, I'm seeing I'm going to miss it, I'm
39 41
1 not always in an ambulance and dire situations 1 going to go through this subdivision. Which now
2 to where someone is going to get hurt because 2 someone might say, well is that a problem now?
3 they are anxious to get to something, a funeral, 3 It's not a problem because they don't figure
4 a wedding, the hospital, whatever, and they are 4 they can do it now and people aren't going to go
5 not as careful. 5 on a street that hasn't been used for ten years.
6 The lanes that were added with your 6 I mean, I don't know, unless you are taking a
7 previous plans and 55th have been helpful in 7 bike or a walk, you don't have any reason to do
8 terms of trying to turn and not feel like 8 that to know that it's developed. They just
9 someone is going to rear end you, so I thank you 9 look at it as not a thorough street. So thank
wozew 10 fOr your previous consideration of that and that waxew 10 you for your consideration of that.
11 has worked well for coming home heading west on 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Thank you very much.
12 55th and then turning into Laurie Lane, you feel 12 MR. JAMES: If you look on page 10 and
13 a little bit safer in that patch that's there 13 11 of your traffic study, you will see the
14 now, so thank you for that. We are talking 14 entire gap report, gap study, and without
15 about -- it's kind of bad all the time, but it's 15 getting into details, it's a matter of seconds,
16 really bad at peak times. 16 7 seconds, 3 seconds, 4 seconds, 2 seconds, 6.9,
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Is it worse in the 17 6.2, 3, 3.
18 morning rush hour or afternoon? 18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Yes. Yes.
19 MS. BELLETETE: I'm retired now; I used 19 MS. BARENBERG: How long ago was that
wosew 20 to take the train. Then I thought it was really waoew 20 traffic study done?
21 bad in the morning. Now, I'm like it's bad in 21 MR. JAMES: Just this year.
22 the morning, I'm going to wait. So I can't 22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: February.
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1 MS. BARENBERG: Carolyn Barenberg. We 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: That's an excellent
2 live on the corner of 55th and County Line. We 2 point. I know when the bridge replacement was
3 have an absolute impossible time now getting out 3 considered before they did it the village did a
4 of our house. 4 traffic study to set a baseline of what the
5 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Are you on the 5 traffic load was on County Line prior to the
6 northeast corner? 6 bridge replacement and I know the intention was
7 MS. BARENBERG: We are on the northeast 7 that if they saw an uptick in the amount of
8 corner, yes. We could wait for ten minutes 8 traffic that was coming from say Ogden heading
9 trying to get out of our house. So that's why I 9 southbound and down County Line that they were
wssew 10 keep asking with all the construction, with all s 10 going to explore traffic calming solutions to
11 this traffic coming across the bridge, it is 11 try to stop that.
12 just backed up all the way down. That's why I'm 12 Has there been an updated traffic
13 asking how long ago this study was done. 13 study done by the village since this bridge was
14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: The traffic study 14 open?
15 was completed February 27th this year. 15 MR. McGINNIS: That is accurate, but I
16 MR. JAMES: 2017. 16 would need to ask Brad Bloom about that. I
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Yes, sir. 17 don't know.
18 MR. BARENBERG: Dave Barenberg. I 18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Could you look into
19 think after you installed that bridge across the 19 that for us? I think that would be helpful.
wsxew 20 railroad and obsoleted that old one-way bridge, wsxew 20 I'M sure the downtown with construction of the
21 that really loaded up County Line Road with 21 road isn't helping. I don't really head
22 traffic. And then, in fact, people are looking 22 southbound County Line too much but I have gone
43 45
1 for ways to get around the downtown area, 1 around and gone east on Chicago Avenue to miss
2 circumvent the downtown traffic and the railroad 2 the downtown traffic. So that would be helpful
3 and so forth. So the least amount of difficulty 3 to see.
4 is going across that bridge going straight to 4 But they did do a study because
5 County Line Road and proceeding south. 5 that was a big concern of village residents
6 So you have all kinds of people 6 people that were on County Line like yourselves
7 coming through now and I have a car for sale in 7 is what's going to happen when the bridge
8 my driveway and I have people that are from all 8 changes and goes from a one lane one direction
9 over the place, nobody from Hinsdale, but 9 bridge.
wswew 10 €verybody from other -- Lyons, Brookfield, wsroeen 10 MS. BARENBERG: Our concern is that I
11 everybody cutting through from Ogden Avenue 11 think they are underestimating 200 times coming
12 proceeding southward, which is the point of 12 out with that many units going in. Because I
13 least resistance to go down County Line Road 13 know with us being retired how many times we go
14 over that bridge straight through to County Line 14 in and out of our house. Trip here, trip there,
15 Road to 55th Street and then if not further 15 grocery store, Walgreens, whatever, it's more
16 south. 16 than what they are projecting.
17 So that gives you an idea of what 17 MR. BARENBERG: It would also be
18 happened. I don't think adequate studies were 18 interesting to take note of this route around
19 done when you put that bridge through because 19 Hinsdale showed up on Google maps the way it is
wssow 20 it's also loading up that residential area south wsoow 20 because those two apps change traffic patterns
21 of that bridge. People see traffic there that 21 all by themselves all the time.
22 they have never seen before. 22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I found shortcuts
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1 that I never knew existed. 1 really made me realize the concerns around the
2 Other comments? 2 area there.
3 MR. DONAHUE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 3 So I looked around and I noticed
4 My name is Michael Donahue, D-0-n-a-h-u-e, 4 that there were two very large trees immediately
5 resident at 1150 Laurie Lane, Burr Ridge, been 5 across my fence that were on the Hinsdale
6 there 19 years. And I'm located probably the 6 Meadows property. I called the local -- and I
7 largest property owner along the line of the 7 want to thank the village for their
8 southeast corner of the development where you 8 responsiveness as well, but I called the local
9 see where the cul-de-sac comes up at the end. I 9 village of forestry department and within I
wszew 10 have about an acre and a half there. If I'm wezen 10 think 24 hours I had a call from Mr. Balas from
11 telling my friends, I'm telling them it's two 11 Edward James to talk to me about it. We
12 acres. So that lot there is in the southeast 12 exchanged several emails.
13 corner of that development. 13 About two days later Mr. James
14 But I'm here tonight to talk a 14 himself and Mr. Balas and one of the other
15 little bit about the epitome of good neighbors. 15 individuals with the design company came out to
16 And Aleta is my neighbor and you couldn't have a 16 see what the problem was and I talked about it
17 finer neighbor. I think some of the traffic 17 and they couldn't have been, again, more
18 comes just to see her decorations for every 18 responsive. I told them that I was going to
19 holiday, which is beautiful and she's been great 19 have my additional trees removed. They said,
wwsew 20 fOr us there. She decorates the escalade and woszew 20 Why don't you just have your guy remove the
21 the other things in the community. 21 trees behind us here, clear out that area, we
22 I'm here to talk about my 22 want to make sure we take care of it. I took
47 49
1 experience over the last 12 to 15 years as 1 the opportunity with Mr. James being there to
2 Edward James and Company has worked on that 2 remind them of some of the sediment that came
3 property. Several times I have had issues 3 down and one of the design folks there said to
4 because there's runoff that comes off of the 4 Mr. James well, maybe we can berm that area.
5 property onto my property and I have about an 5 So not only did they immediately
6 acre driveway. 6 remove those trees on their property,
7 Every time that I have called or 7 immediately pay for that, allow me to take care
8 talked to anybody about it, they couldn't be 8 of it in due course with mine, which was a
9 more responsive and more considerate and 9 matter of weeks, but then they reassured me
wszew 10 actually 12, 15 years ago they placed a screen wozew 10 SEVeEral times in emails and others that they
11 to try to take some of the sediment so that it 11 were looking at putting a berm so the runoff on
12 would be reduced. My landscapers were shoveling 12 my property would be not such a problem.
13 some of it off and it helped a great deal. But 13 So as far as I'm concerned, you
14 they have always been there and extremely 14 couldn't have a better neighbor. We don't in
15 helpful. 15 this society say thank you enough. I wanted to
16 More recently in June, I didn't 16 thank Edward James and Company for what they
17 realize how bad my trees were in the back of my 17 did, thank the village for the support that they
18 vyard. I had the Dutch elm and during one of the 18 gave us, and just go on record, I have heard it
19 big storms that we had I had a tree that fell on 19 from their own developments, but go on record
wosew 20 MY property nearly hitting -- I have a sun porch wosew 20 from what I have seen in terms of them being a
21 and others in the back, fell on my patio and 21 good neighbor.
22 nearly hit my house. So for the first time 22 Additionally, I also have called
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1 Hinsdale before so this is part of my saying 1 We have spent the majority of our
2 expedite it as fast as you can because Hinsdale 2 lives in the community and now as empty-nesters
3 has been very responsive again because of the 3 we are faced with a decision on where and how we
4 number of skunks that come over and my dogs have 4 will live. We desperately want to stay in this
5 already been hit three times this year so the 5 community. This is where our friends are and
6 sooner you develop it and take care of that, we 6 where we have attended church since we moved
7 will be happy. But we are looking forward to 7 herein 1992. We want to stay close to our club
8 our new neighbors. Thank you very much. 8 and to the village of Hinsdale where we shop and
9 MR. JAMES: The skunks are not ours. 9 dine. Our children are all out of the house and
wozzeem 10 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Any other citizens wuoen 10 it is time to transition our big home to the
11 who would like to speak on this matter? Yes, 11 next generation family that can use all of the
12 sir. 12 space that we no longer need. We love our home
13 MR. BUCHELERES: John Bucheleres, 13 but we know that it is time to move on.
14 B-u-c-h-e-l-e-r-e-s, 718 South Washington. 14 We started to look at various
15 So do we still need people to speak 15 housing options several years ago. There is
16 in favor of the development or are we past that? 16 simply nothing that fits our space needs. While
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: No. If there's 17 surrounding communities and even downtown were
18 anyone here who wants to speak for or against 18 considered, we just do not want to leave
19 it, I want to hear what people have to say; 19 Hinsdale.
wesen 20 that's important to us. osossorn 20 The Hinsdale Meadows project is
21 MR. BUCHELERES: I have already done 21 perfect for families like ours and we know many
22 that a few times at a few plan commission 22 other families that feel the same way and are
51 53
1 meetings and at the village board. So if it's 1 looking to move into this new community.
2 instructive, if it's helpful, I'm happy to do 2 Hinsdale Meadows is the right project at the
3 it 3 right time for our village.
4 MS. BRASELTON: I haven't heard you 4 I remember standing at village hall
5 speak before. 5 some 16 years ago to support the original
6 MR. BUCHELERES: Well, I'll tell you 6 single-family home project, maybe that was
7 what, I'm going to read a letter that I sent to 7 14 years ago. I have met Ed and Jerry James on
8 the village president and the board of trustees 8 many occasions and our village is fortunate to
9 right before this development was approved back 9 have such a talented developer that wants to
wozew 10 N April, May, March. So it's a long time ago. woszew 10 build in our community. I have personally
11 I think the easiest thing for me to do would 11 toured their developments in the Glen, in
12 just be to reread the letter that I sent to the 12 Glenview, Illinois and Hibbard Gardens in
13 village president and the board of trustees. 13 Northfield, Illinois. We would be proud to live
14 I am writing to you today to 14 in one of their developments.
15 express my strong and unwavering support for the 15 The Hinsdale Meadows project will
16 proposed Hinsdale Meadows single family and 16 be of the highest quality and the homes and
17 multifamily housing development in Hinsdale. 17 multifamily dwellings will be very attractive
18 I have been a Hinsdale resident for 18 and fit into what is now an eyesore. We are
19 24 years and my wife Mary and I have raised four 19 lucky that a developer that is as exceptional as
wasew 20 Children in the village of Hinsdale. All of our wosseew 20 Edward R. James and Company still wants to build
21 children have attended preschool, grade school, 21 in our village after so many years of delays.
22 middle school and high school in Hinsdale. 22 The alternative of bringing in a national
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1 developer that would build commodity homes could 1 MR. JAMES: It really works. And the
2 be a disaster. Something is going to get built 2 duplex homes that we are building here are
3 here and we are fortunate that Edward James 3 similar in style and character to what we did at
4 still wants to build in our community. 4 Fox Meadow.
5 I urge you to vote in the 5 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I'm sure you weren't
6 affirmative for this project at next week's 6 happy when you got my comments when I originally
7 meeting. This is a project that needs to get 7 looked at the plans. I like the A-B concepts
8 built now to satisfy the demand of so many 8 the best. I didn't want to see any A-As or
9 families like ours. I am certain that this 9 B-Bs. But when you look at the development and
wwoew 10 project will be incredibly successful and that wuxew 10 the placement of the buildings, you basically
11 Hinsdale would be proud that this housing option 11 created as many as you could and I'm okay with
12 is finally delivered to our village. Thank you. 12 it because there's a mix of it so it's not like
13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Any other community 13 you see all these ones with two doors.
14 members that would like to speak regarding this 14 MR. WILLOBEE: 1 like the aesthetics.
15 matter? 15 My in-laws have a place in Florida, it's garage
16 (No response.) 16 door heaven. It's just demand wise,
17 Hearing none, commissioners, 17 functionality. I know we steered away from it
18 questions for the applicant? It's a lot to take 18 because my significant other cannot handle the
19 in. Debra? 19 90-degree turn.
osoroeen 20 MS. BRASELTON: I'm thinking. I had a ososceen 20 MR. JAMES: It does work.
21 couple but they may have been answered. 21 MS. BRASELTON: You get your own
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Mark, are you ready? 22 driveway. One of the questions I had is how
55 57
1 MR. WILLOBEE: Yes. As far as the 1 much space is in the driveway when you have the
2 building elevations, as far as the side-loading 2 two front-load garages in the duet? You can
3 garages, just personal experience how much 3 leave your car out there obviously. It's really
4 demand is there for the side-loading? I know 4 hard to tell on the plan.
5 personally when we looked at houses I didn't 5 MR. JAMES: The apron for the garage
6 like the side-loading garage with its 90-degree 6 would be about 25 or 30 feet long. Is that what
7 turn trying to get in. Is there a lot of demand 7 you are asking?
8 for that? 8 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Like between the two
9 MR. JAMES: In our case I would defer 9 driveways for a B-B unit or an A-A, how much
wosew 10 to the architect. It's really a placement of wouew 10 grass between the two driveways?
11 the home on the lot but there's no negative to 1 MR. JAMES: 4 to 5 feet.
12 the side-loaded garage. In fact, we have them 12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: One question I had
13 at Hibbard Gardens where I live and my neighbors 13 looking at the different concepts, are there
14 love it. It works out well. We have Fox 14 specific models here that you from experience
15 Meadow. 15 you think will be more popular than others? I
16 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: What's the one 16 imagine you choose this kind of lineup or pallet
17 across from the old Kraft? 17 of options because of their success and their
18 MR. JAMES: Fox Meadow. 18 appeal and everything, but looking at these four
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So when you drive in 19 main types is there one that tends to be more
weuew 20 there, you almost think that they are all wozew 20 popular? Are they the smaller ones in the
21 single-family homes because you can never really 21 current market are they looking for the smaller
22 see the two garages. 22 homes or are they going for the bigger options?
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1 MR. JAMES: I think it's too early to 1 expert speak to this.
2 tell. We are doing a project in Northbrook and 2 MR. DUFFY: Correct. Brett Duffy with
3 we have the Torrington plan there and we have 3 SpaceCo, 9575 West Higgins Road in Rosemont,
4 sold several of those. We are building a new 4 TIllinois, Suite 700.
5 Haven model home and I was just in it yesterday, 5 Yes, the current outflow there's an
6 it's all drywalled and they are putting all the 6 emergency overflow spillway that will be raised
7 things to open up in about a month and it's 7 about three-tenths of a foot above the original
8 fantastic. And that's one of the smaller homes. 8 plan design grade to accommodate the additional
9 So we are really pleased with it. 9 impervious coverage for the site. So it will
osrosen 10 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I guess on a similar wewew 10 still fit within the same footprint of the
11 note, so will you build any of these in kind of 11 detention basin.
12 a speculative mode or will you wait to have 12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I thought I saw that
13 buyers before you build anything? 13 at the trustee level on the concept plan that
14 MR. JAMES: Ever since this company was 14 they agreed to accept the payment in lieu of the
15 founded and formed and we did Lake Barrington 15 BMP. So the idea is not to go and change this
16 Shores with 1,300 homes, any project -- we will 16 pond but the trustees wanted to take that
17 have a model here and there, but we don't start 17 donation, the money and leave the pond the way
18 a building -- if it's @ multiunit building, we 18 it was.
19 do not start that building until it's 50 percent 19 MR. DUFFY: Correct. It will be
woew 20 s0ld. So if it's a two-unit building, we will wiew 20 Cleaned up and do some enhancements around the
21 sell one. Ifit's a four-unit, we will sell two 21 Dbasin.
22 and single family we usually build them on 22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I saw new plantings.
59 61
1 order. 1 MR. DUFFY: Right.
2 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: If someone 2 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Along that screen
3 approached you and wanted to go into a duet, 3 wall on 55th Street, it seems that you have a
4 then you would start development of that duet 4 swale on the south running to the east. The
5 even though you haven't sold the second half of 5 water on the north side can it go under that
6 it? 6 wall?
7 MR. JAMES: Yes. Right. Worst thing 7 MR. DUFFY: Yes. The wall will be
8 you can do is build inventory. I mean, lots of 8 elevated 4 to 5 inches. There's about 15 feet,
9 inventory. You have to have homes that you can 9 20 feet of grass area that it will flow from
wiwew 10 deliver and we will have that. But where waxew 10 south from 55th Street as it currently does,
11 builders get in trouble is they build too much 11 will maintain that same drainage pattern but the
12 out front, you build it and they will come and 12 wall will be elevated.
13 guess what, some of them don't come. 13 MR. WILLOBEE: You did the as builts
14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So Scott raised a 14 comparison that was based on 2005 from Cowhey.
15 good question. He was asking about the 15 It looks like you guys did a survey then. Is
16 retention and in my read through this basically 16 there any reason you guys didn't update that
17 what I was able to take away is that as I think 17 analysis based on existing sewer rates?
18 you discussed before the existing detention will 18 MR. DUFFY: I have to go back and look.
19 be modified by raising the outlet by building 19 1 believe the detention volume that was existing
weoew 20 sOomMe concrete walls to just modify like six wuew 20 Was based on recent topography and the
21 inches. 21 enhancements that will be required will be based
22 MR. JAMES: Yes. I'm going to let the 22 on the existing footprint that's out there right

August 9, 2017, PC Hearing

KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-83'4_1i?‘7

dihgs & Recommendations Exhibit 3'¢ " 31 sheets



62

64

1 now. We had the original as builts and we made 1 already treated the cattails once in the
2 sure in the final condition the conditions out 2 existing pond and I tried to get out there this
3 there right now will be satisfactory to provide 3 afternoon to see them but I couldn't get across
4 the detention volume. 4 the railroad tracks and we will be treating them
5 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Didn't that 5 again later this summer and then they will be
6 emergency outflow, wasn't it -- hadn't it 6 gone.
7 settled or something from what was originally 7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Anna, any questions?
8 planned? 8 MS. FIASCONE: Just a clarification on
9 MR. DUFFY: It was originally planned. 9 the gate between the subdivision and the
wuxew 10 I'm not sure if it settled or if it was not wroew 10 hospital. Is that like a just in case gate or
11 constructed at the proper height, so in the 11 how often do you think that would be used?
12 existing condition it's lower than what was 12 MR. JAMES: Hopefully never.
13 proposed to be. All things being equal, it 13 MS. FIASCONE: It's not like for
14 would need to be modified regardless to meet the 14 ambulances?
15 original design intent but we are going to 15 MR. JAMES: No. No. Our
16 modify it a little bit more. 16 understanding, and we are still talking with the
17 MR. WILLOBEE: Looking at park A the 17 hospital about that and a couple of other
18 grading there's two large berms five feet high 18 things, but it's for emergency vehicles being
19 in that park. What's the reason behind that? 19 fire department as far as we know that the big
wisoaew 20 I'M thinking from use perspective and aesthetic wiraon 20 truck can't get through their parking lot or
21 perspective. We have limited a lot of the uses 21 whatever they are doing and so it would come
22 but I'm thinking from a park wanting to go play 22 down Barton Lane. And likewise, let's just say
63 65
1 catch with the grandkids or something like that, 1 that there is an accident on Barton Lane and
2 I'm not sure that having 4-foot, 5-foot high 2 they can't get through and there's a need for
3 berms. 3 something south on Barton Lane, they could come
4 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Park A is the one in 4 that way. So it's a win-win for everybody and
5 the northwest corner? 5 it was a good idea and we are pleased and we are
6 MR. WILLOBEE: Yes. 6 working very well with the hospital.
7 MR. DUFFY: The berm along the house 7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I found on some of
8 was proposed to be installed there to screen the 8 the text refers to the fact that there's concern
9 home. We were working with landscaping in order 9 if somehow the access to the hospital off of
wisxew 10 to provide some -- I don't recall the reasoning wewew 10 County Line that was blocked that then they have
11 for the berm on the north side. 11 a second way in to access the property.
12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Is that a sound 12 MR. JAMES: Here again, that's the
13 barrier? 13 emergency. I mean, you know what, when there's
14 MR. DUFFY: I don't think it's for a 14 an emergency, you do what has to be done and we
15 sound barrier. 15 are pleased to be a part of that process so that
16 MR. SMITH: Both berms were intended 16 whoever needs the help, they can get to them.
17 just to screen the homes on either side of the 17 MR. McGINNIS: So that gate was pretty
18 park. So that was the purpose. 18 much driven by the fire department. They were
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: These parks both of 19 under the impression that there was an agreement
wozew 20 them look like just strolling kind of parks. weiew 20 iN place in the original improvement agreement
21 MR. SMITH: Right, more of a passive. 21 for the original Sedgwick that mandated for a
22 MR. JAMES: I might add that we have 22 gate to be installed for fire department access.
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1 There was nothing in the improvement agreement 1 that's what they do, about eight feet.
2 that we could find that drove that. So the 2 MR. KRILLENBERGER: That's enough to
3 request was driven by the fire department and 3 keep sound and lights and everything?
4 James was good enough to accommodate the 4 MR. JAMES: Yes. Eight feet is what it
5 request. 5 comes in the sections.
6 RML is planning on an $8 million 6 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: It's 4-foot
7 renovation. They need to locate some temporary 7 sections, right?
8 office trailers on the east side of the 8 MR. JAMES: I wish I knew. I don't
9 development. As you know RML, it's kind of 9 have those details. It will be eight feet.
wuzen 10 bUilt in @ spoke pattern and they have a fire wxeen 10 It's @an expensive fence but we think it's going
11 lane that runs around the facility now but it's 11 to be beautiful when it's done.
12 marginal at best. So the fire department was a 12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I thought it was a
13 lot more comfortable knowing they could get 13 good idea. If you actually drive westbound on
14 access off of Barton Lane in the event they had 14 55th Street and take a look at some of the
15 to get to that side of the hospital. Ideally it 15 properties, especially if they don't face 55th
16 never gets used. 16 Street, they have high stockade fences.
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I read through the 17 MR. JAMES: This is a far cry better
18 legal agreement between the village and the 18 than a stockade fence is. It's really
19 developer, I don't know if it's in it already, 19 attractive.
wesew 20 but it will be in that agreement. oszraen 20 MR. WILLOBEE: What's the longevity of
21 MR. JAMES: That will probably be in 21 that fence?
22 the development agreement, No. 1, but it will be 22 MR. JAMES: I don't know. But my guess
67 69
1 in the homeowner's association declaration No. 1 is it will last a lot longer in that condition
2 2, aclear and concise agreement who maintains 2 than a normal wood fence because it's prefab.
3 what for maintenance, for repairs. They are 3 MR. WILLOBEE: Fences are a part of the
4 going to take care of their brick paver on their 4 HOA's responsibility?
5 side, we will take care of the brick paver on 5 MR. JAMES: Oh, yes. It belongs to HOA
6 our side and we are going to put up the black 6 for their maintenance and everything. All part
7 cloth fence and so forth. We want to just spell 7 of the agreement.
8 it out. 8 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: One thing I just
9 MR. McGINNIS: It's just a padlock that 9 wanted to comment on. In the homeowner's
wnzew 10 the fire department will cut it with bolt wzeew 10 @SsOCiation agreement I was pleased to see all
11 cutters if they have to get through that gate. 11 the text after you went through the board of
12 MR. JAMES: We want to avoid surprises. 12 trustees, the restrictions, our concern about
13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jerry? 13 play sets and all that and trying to make this
14 MR. JABLONSKI: No. 14 be successful as an age-targeted and I really
15 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Scott? 15 think it's spelled out well in there. It's
16 MR. PETERSON: No. 16 clear that focus is on not only the lots but
17 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Debra? 17 also on the common property and I just think
18 MS. BRASELTON: No. 18 that's good and I thought there was also the
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jim? 19 bedroom restrictions in there and the powder
wsasen 20 MR. KRILLENBERGER: Is eight feet the wzaew 20 rOOM in the basement.
21 standard height for a screening fence? 21 MR. JAMES: Right. That is there.
22 MR. JAMES: For the stone walls, yes, 22 Correct.
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1 I might add one thing. In the 1 declaration. So again, we don't look for
2 homeowner's association budget, as we said 2 problems, we try to get them up front and
3 before, we have single-family homes and duplex 3 discuss them, resolve them, and then everybody
4 homes. With the duplex homes have a common 4 if they like it, fine, if they don't, they don't
5 roof, it's one building, and so the association 5 have to buy there.
6 will insure those, the exterior of those 6 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: One thing I just
7 buildings. So if something does happen to a 7 want to comment on is the landscape drawings. I
8 roof on one unit and not the other and the roof 8 think it's interesting when you look at the
9 has to be replaced or repaired and you have new 9 duets and then you look at the sample designs
wzew 10 shingles and old shingles, it's going to look wsew 10 for the single-family models, there's an
11 like a hodgepodge. So different from a single 11 extensive level of landscaping around the
12 family home where a single owner takes care of 12 structures which I know from looking at Lake
13 it. So the association will be responsible for 13 Barrington and I'm more familiar with Fox
14 roof and repairs and that assessment will be on 14 Meadow, Hibbard Gardens and it's nice to see the
15 the duplex homeowners only and single families 15 extent but if you really look at these landscape
16 will still have their own. But in the 16 drawings, there's some serious landscaping and I
17 assessment for the duplex homes, it will include 17 think on a very short order once these buildings
18 the insurance on the structure which includes 18 are built and landscaped, it's going to look
19 the roof. Now interior wise it's all on their 19 very mature and then over time and what's nice
wmaen 20 OWN. wssoen 20 UNfortunately there was a delay but there's
21 MR. WILLOBEE: I also notice the 21 already been a lot of the landscaping has
22 declaration includes the storm, sanitary 22 matured and interesting the ones that will be
71 73
1 ownership. Is that in the right-of-way or is 1 transplanted and saved, but when I looked at the
2 that just the laterals? 2 landscape drawings, I was pleased. I wasn't
3 MR. JAMES: I don't want to misstate 3 surprised but pleased to see it documented how
4 it 4 extensive itis.
5 MR. DUFFY: I don't have the 5 MR. JAMES: Thank you. I encourage
6 declaration in front of me. Typically, the main 6 you, because you go up that way for New Trier,
7 line down the street would be maintained by the 7 go up to Voltz Road in Waukegan and look at
8 city and all the service lines would be the 8 Anets Woods and what we did there at the front
9 responsibility of HOA but I have to review that. 9 entrance and what will be inside. It's
wazew 10 The main lines definitely public utilities. wezew 10 Magnificent.
1 MR. JAMES: Anything off the main line 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Where on Waukegan?
12 belongs to the homeowner's association and I 12 MR. JAMES: Voltz and Waukegan just
13 think anything, if I'm not mistaken, once it 13 north of Willow by Techny. This is dated
14 hits their property line, it belongs to the 14 August 7th. We didn't ask for this. This is
15 homeowner but anything between the property line 15 from one of the neighbors and when Jerry read it
16 and the main line that's the association but 16 to me, I said give it to me. If the subject
17 don't hold me to that because I just can't 17 comes up, I want to read it to the plan
18 remember. 18 commission because we are very gratified by this
19 MR. WILLOBEE: I have seen the ones, 19 and appreciate it.
waew 20 the main lines there's one in Oak Brook. wwzoseen 20 But first of all, unbelievable job
21 MR. JAMES: I know it's covered and 21 on your landscaping, especially along Voltz.
22 it's fully explained and it's outlined in the 22 Awesome job. I am sure a huge investment on
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1 your part. I hope your sales are progressing 1 p.m.)
2 well. They are. I do have a slight issue. 2
3 This goes back to Mike. It always happens. No 3
4 crisis. But there is a standing dead tree just 4
5 inside the conservation area near my place that 5
6 I would like to chat with one of your guys about 6
7 what we might do to mitigate an untimely and 7
8 possible damaging fall down wrong. Just a chat 8
9 to see what we might do. 9
oszrazem 10 He's already been called and we 10
11 will address that the same as we did with Mike. 1
12 Lightening strikes twice. This time it did. 12
13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Well, it's just 13
14 about 9:30. We, obviously, are going to need to 14
15 continue this to next month and then hopefully 15
16 staff will have time to go through the table of 16
17 compliance in detail; but also I want to 17
18 encourage commissioners, we are missing two 18
19 tonight, but hopefully they will be back because 19
waeew 20 bOth of them were involved in previous meetings 20
21 and if we have other questions that come up, 21
22 then we can bring them up a month from now. But 22
75 77
1 if there's not any other comments, I'd like to 1 STATE OF ILLINO.IS )
2 hear a motion to continue this to the next 2 COUNTY OF I)DUSTD.AGE )
3 meeting.
4 MR. WILLOBEE: So moved. 3 I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
5 MR. PETERSON: Second. 4 Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
o cur Clsw: A O o
7 MS. FIASCONE: Aye. 7 examination and testimony of the various
8 MR. WILLOBEE: Aye. 8 witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
9 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Avye. 9 testify the truth in relation to the matters
10 MR. JABLONSKI: Avye. 10 pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
1 MR. PETERSON: Aye. 11 said witnesses was reduced to writir\g bY means
12 of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
12 MS. BRASELTON: Aye. 13 typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
13 MR. KRILLENBERGER: Aye. 14 true, correct and complete transcript of my
14 MR. JAMES: Thank you very much. 15 shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.
15 MR. MARRS: Mr. Chairman, just for the 16 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF T have -
17 hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial
16 record, if we can state the date of the next 18 seal this 30th day of August, A.D. 2017.
17 meeting. 19
18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: September 13th at
19 7:30. 20 KATHLEEN W. BONO,
C.S.R. No. 84-1423,
20 (WHEREUPON, said Public 21 Notary Public, DuPage County
21 Hearing was continued to
22 September 13, 2017 at 7:30 22
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) Ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION
In the Matter of:
HINSDALE MEADOWS VENTURE,
55th St/County Line Road

Special Use Permit
Case No. A-25-2017.

~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~—

CONTINUED REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and
testimony taken at the hearing of the above-
entitled matter before the Hinsdale Plan
Commission, at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale,
Illinois, on September 13, 2017, at the hour of

7:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;
MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member;
MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member;
MR. SCOTT PETERSON, Member;
MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member; and

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member.
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1 ALSO PRESENT:
1 prepareit. And this is for the property on
2 MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner; 2 their side of the fence not our side.
3 MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of 3 So that has been -- that's in
Community Development; 4 progress and they are working on that and I
4 L}
MR. MICHAEL MARRS, Village Attorney: 5 can't tell you how long that may take, but we
5 6 have provided an easement from our property
6 MR. EDWARD R. JAMES, Applicant; 7 across the right-of-way, across the parkway to
MR. MICHAEL BALAS, Edward James 8 the RML property and that is at the village
7 Company; 9 attorney for approval.
8 MR. TERRENCE SMITH, Applicant's Land oozzsaem 10 We have also entered into a
Planner. 11 construction agreement with RML Hospital and
9
12 that has been approved and it's between the two
10 13 parties as to what we are doing with the fence
14 and the gate and the maintenance and the
11 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Case A-25-2017, 55th
12 Street and County Line, Hinsdale Meadows 15 installation and what have you; and again, we
13 Venture, LLC, and this is a detailed plan and 16 have worked very well with the hospital.
14 special use permit for a 64-unit residential )
15 planned development and we continued this from 17 Mr. Pawola, their CEO, Pat Geary have been very
16 our August 9th meeting and I'm not even sure 18 cooperative and we have a good relationship with
17 what number meeting we are on in this process. 19 th
18 But I appreciate your patience and seems like we em.
19 are getting closer to an end. wzszuem 20 We have been working diligently
oz 20 (WHE,R,EUPON’ the oath was 21 with the KLM park and recreation board and as of
21 administered en masse.)
22 MR. JAMES: We are here tonight to 22 last night, they approved the recommendation,
91 93
1 update you on the progress since our last 1 their recommendation, at our approval. And
2 meeting. You have a letter from me dated 2 basically what it is is we are going to use our
3 September 6th in which we outline seven items on 3 excess dirt from excavation, we will store it on
4 which we were working and tonight we have six 4 our property as opposed to storing it on
5 items to review or to bring up. I can put them 5 their's.
6 on the board or you can refer to them in your 6 After looking at fields 1, 2, 3,
7 packet, whichever you like. 7 the 2 fields, 1 and 2, were the fields running
8 While Mike is doing that, for 8 on an east-west orientation and field 3 was on a
9 discussion tonight and review, the final 9 north-south orientation and north of the
waoew 10 €ngineering for Hinsdale Meadows has been wauwen 10 eXisting regulation field.
11 approved by staff. 1 What we are going to do is -- what
12 The table of compliance has been 12 they have decided to do is to deal strictly at
13 approved by staff. 13 this point with field 3 and that is the one
14 3. The emergency access easement 14 north of the existing regulation field. We will
15 from RML Hospital has been submitted to the 15 create a new regulation size field along with a
16 village attorney for approval. 16 swale and berm that will replicate the existing
17 I want to explain this. RML 17 swale and berm currently east of their
18 Hospital leases the land from Cook County and 18 regulation field so as to be sure not to have
19 they cannot, after speaking with their president 19 any water runoff or what have you that might go
wzwew 20 @nd Pat Geary, who both have been very waswen 20 ONto the neighboring properties in Burr Ridge.
21 cooperative, they cannot enter into any easement 21 And that's all been engineered and designed and
22 agreement that we prepare only Cook County can 22 everybody has approved it and they approved it
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1 last night with one exception to our letter, and 1 words in their mouth, but many of them liked the
2 -- not an exception but we all approved that. 2 idea of the rolling land, the topography and the
3 Instead of having a series of evergreen trees 3 trees and weren't sure they wanted to change it,
4 every 30 feet along the berm to block the view 4 but they will make that decision at a later
5 and what have you, the forester has asked to 5 date.
6 have a variety of trees which would include 6 And then when we get sufficient
7 evergreens and deciduous and what have you, and 7 dirt, if we have sufficient dirt to do both
8 we are perfectly comfortable with that. We 8 fields, then we would bring it in. And the
9 don't know what the spacing will be, it will 9 agreement also says that if we don't have
wszen 10 depend on the type of tree and what have you, wazen 10 sUfficient dirt and they still want the fields
11 but I haven't been able to get ahold of our 11 done, they would be responsible for bringing in
12 landscaper today and check but he said it could 12 the additional dirt at their cost.
13 be done and there could be 3 and 4-inch trees 13 The fields will be turned over to
14 that will go and 8-foot evergreens is what we 14 the parks and recreation committee when the
15 contemplate. 15 grass is 70 percent grown. Watering, they will
16 So we are very happy that they 16 be fenced so that nobody can go on them and it
17 approved that and I think it's going to be an 17 grows properly. The fields will be regulation
18 excellent program for them. We did learn that. 18 with a less than 2 percent grade change or
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So instead of 19 slope, whatever you term it. The watering will
wssen 20 Modifying three fields or two fields, you are wasew 20 cOme from the existing fire hydrant that is now
21 modifying just the one? 21 there between fields 1 and 2 and we will use
22 MR. JAMES: I'm going to come to that. 22 that water and the village will supply the water
95 97
1 That's the second part. 1 for us so we can sprinkle appropriately with
2 The one benefit that we thought, we 2 temporary sprinklers.
3 just learned about it last night, was that the 3 So all in all that's pretty much
4 parks and recreation committee does receive 4 Dbasically the system, but if they decide not to
5 revenue from the use of their one regulation 5 go ahead with fields 1 and 2, then we have said
6 field. With a second regulation field, they 6 we will truck off the excess dirt that we have
7 will be able to hopefully increase that revenue 7 and get rid of it, or if they want it for future
8 and keep more people coming to that field 8 use on some other project, we would be glad to
9 instead of going elsewhere because all they have 9 transport it and stockpile it on their side
wmoen 10 IS ONE. wmoew 10 Wherever they want it.
11 When we expect to start the fields 1 But at that point in time, if they
12 we will start when we get sufficient dirt 12 didn't do fields 1 and 2, our commitment would
13 stockpiled on our property and there's 13 be completed and that would be the end of the
14 sufficient dirt to do field 3 and the ideal time 14 public benefit, the completion of the public
15 to do it, which is what we have all agreed to, 15 benefit.
16 is between July 1st and August 15th. We will 16 So we are very happy with that.
17 fence the field and make sure that we are 17 And that's the synopsis of it. I don't think I
18 properly working all of that. 18 made a mistake. IfI did --
19 When we finish the field, at that 19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: So you met last
wnsew 20 poiNnt in time, we will ask the parks and wasew 20 Night with parks and rec?
21 recreation committee if they want to move ahead 21 MR. JAMES: Yes.
22 with fields 1 and 2. And I don't want to put 22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Anything going
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1 tomorrow? 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I would just ask,
2 MR. JAMES: You don't really want to 2 it's been brought up to me and I said, you know,
3 know, do you? 3 we talked about so many things I don't remember
4 So anyway, we are very happy. We 4 talking about that. And I would just like you
5 think -- personally, I think they have made a 5 to at least discuss when it gets to the board
6 right decision. I think you can retain the 6 level that you discuss that, the issue of
7 beauty of that park, and it is pretty, but they 7 fences.
8 are also going to get a very good playing 8 MR. JAMES: We have many granddogs and
9 surface, a second one, which I think will be a 9 we appreciate the fact that we had a fence where
wxzew 10 revenue producer that will go on and on and on wszew 10 we lived before and it was very convenient, let
11 for which we think that's a good deal for us and 11 them out, they do their thing and come back and
12 a good deal for the village. 12 we know where it is and we can clean it up.
13 And then the development agreement 13 MS. CRNOVICH: I'd like to comment that
14 is with the village attorneys and between our 14 I'm not that thrilled about the fences. I think
15 attorney and they are going over the details, 15 one of the goals of a planned unit development
16 but I don't think there's too many issues out 16 is open space and I think that kind of takes
17 there left outstanding. We did make the 17 away from it, especially being like an age-
18 changes. They were minor in change to the 18 targeted community. I think with the dogs you
19 homeowner declaration. And that's about it. 19 can get electric fences. Fences do you have to
n—1 | CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: The homeowner wasen 20 have to fence with a single-family home.
21 declaration is it a law permitted to put fences 21 MR. JAMES: It's just on the single
22 like if I own one of the single family, can I 22 family. If you look where the single families
99 101
1 have fences? 1 are, they face onto County Line Road or to 55th
2 MR. JAMES: Yes. Yes. For the single 2 Street and they would back up to the SimTek
3 family homes we have said that we will for the 3 fence that we are going to put there. And then
4 homeowners who have dogs, or what have you, and 4 we have the homes along the pond and there will
5 they may not want to walk them every single day, 5 be sufficient open space beyond the fence area
6 we have allowed -- we have said that we would 6 and that 24, 25, I can't remember the number,
7 permit the fence to extend from the corner of 7 includes the patio area. So that's about 10 or
8 the building out to either 24, 25 feet, whatever 8 12 feet. So it's only about a few feet beyond
9 itis, in some cases maybe 24, 25 feet, and then 9 that and no wider than the ends of the houses
woxew 10 COMe back and it has to have an entrance wide waeew 10 @nd it will be no higher than 4 feet and it will
11 enough for the lawnmowers to get through for the 11 be a black wrought iron, aluminum simulated
12 maintenance and the homeowners' association will 12 wrought iron.
13 maintain them. We will not allow fences on the 13 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I have lived in
14 duplex homes only on the single family homes. 14 houses with fences and without fences. So I'm
15 And that will be subject to our approval as a 15 kind of on the fence on this one. It's
16 developer when we are building and selling and 16 something we just never talked about.
17 the homeowners' association at a later date. 17 MR. JAMES: We have been in this
18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Would a fence be 18 business a long time and I can remember the days
19 able to come forward from the front elevation of 19 when we didn't allow pets or dogs into
waew 20 the house? waoew 20 @partments or buildings or what have you, and
21 MR. JAMES: No. Nothing in the front 21 then we modified that many, many years ago. And
22 atall. Only in the rear areas. 22 we said that -- first of all, the pet has to be
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1 a certain size and all the rest of it and has to 1 4-inch spacing?
2 be properly cared for and everything. But we 2 MR. JAMES: Yes. And they will
3 said you can bring your pet with you, you just 3 probably have at the low level the smaller
4 don't replace it because pets are important to 4 inserts so smaller dogs can't go through. We
5 people, whether they are young or old, they 5 have been there. We are good there. You learn
6 become a family member and this policy has 6 the hard way.
7 worked out extremely well and now many, many, 7 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Scott?
8 many buildings have this. In fact, they even 8 MR. PETERSON: I'm good.
9 have dog areas in the apartment buildings in the 9 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jim?
wwszew 10 City and so forth, but we are not contemplating p—— ] MR. KRILLENBERGER: No more comments.
11 that. We are just trying to make it easy for 1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: We have talked about
12 them to move. They don't have to get rid of 12 this for quite a while. I remember when this
13 their dog and he or she doesn't have to walk it 13 all started. I really appreciate your -- I
14 every single day other than when he or she wants 14 think we really have -- this has been a good
15 to. But it's a convenience and we think it's 15 process. I appreciate your patience.
16 going to work okay. If we didn't, we wouldn't 16 We have gone through, talked about
17 do it; we would just say no. But we think it's 17 so many different things related to this
18 a reasonable approach and that's part of our 18 project. ButI think in the end I thought we
19 declaration. 19 were able to come up with a nice solution that
wsanzrn 20 MS. CRNOVICH: Well like Steve said, I weww 20 balance with what you are proposing with the
21 don't recall talking about the fences before. 21 needs and concerns of the commissioners and the
22 MR. KRILLENBERGER: It's nice that they 22 neighbors who spoke. It was nice to hear the
103 105
1 are limited to four feet. That keeps a sense of 1 neighbors that were interested in purchasing
2 open space in the community. 2 your properties, and I think it's time to call a
3 MR. JAMES: Oh, yes. And they will be 3 vote on this matter.
4 double width gate so that the maintenance people 4 Robb, anything we need to address?
5 can getin and out. We will maintain the yards 5 MR. McGINNIS: No. I would only add
6 to the extent that we planted them. Now, if 6 that once this lines up in front of the board of
7 they want to put a little garden or flowers, 7 trustees and they approve the detailed plan,
8 that's up to the individuals to maintain, but we 8 there's yet another step, it's an administrative
9 do all the lawn mowing and what have you. 9 review as part of the permit review process.
wwasozem 10 Mike, anything else? wwaosen 10 So if there are conditions set in
1 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Comments, questions 11 the approval, there will be another check on
12 by commissioners? 12 this before we actually issue permits. I just
13 Mark? 13 wanted to have that out there.
14 MR. WILLOBEE: I think I asked most of 14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Sort of hate to see
15 my questions last time. 15 the first one ribbon cutting.
16 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Julie? 16 MR. JAMES: T'll do it from my
17 MS. CRNOVICH: No. Just about the 17 wheelchair.
18 fences. Sorry, I don't like the fences. 18 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: I know. And I
19 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jerry? 19 appreciate all the effort that the village
wwasziem 20 MR. JABLONSKI: If the purpose of the waeew 20 €ngineers and the planning department and Chan
21 fence is for dogs and sounds like small dogs 21 and our legal, what everyone has been involved
22 would be allowed, wrought iron fencing with 22 in this because it's a team process and I really
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1 appreciate you working with the parks and rec on 1 STATE OF ILLINCIS )
2 this public benefit which I'm excited for. 1 ) ss:
2 COUNTY OF DU PAGE )
3 have been over on those fields and I think that
4 Katherine Legge is a great resource that we have 3 I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified
5 in the village and it's great that you are 4 Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the
6 helping us with that and improving that and I 5 County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby
7 appreciate that. 6 certify that previous to the commencement of the
8 MR. JAMES: Thank you. And we have 7 e>_<amination an_d testimony of the various
8 witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
9 enjoyed working with all of them. I can't tell 9 testify the truth in relation to the matters
wseen 10 you how helpful they have been. We had to tow 10 pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
11 the mark, yes, but it's all been for the 11 said witnesses was reduced to writing by means
12 betterment and we think we have a good project 12 of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
13 and we are delighted. 13 typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
14 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Thank you. 14 true, correct and complete transc_ript of my
15 shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.
15 MR. MARRS: Mr. Chairman, before you 16 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
16 make a motion, I just want to clarify in your 17 hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial
17 agenda it talks about the special use but the 18 seal this 19th day of September, A.D. 2017.
18 special use was actually approved at the 19
19 original. So the motion we are really looking 20
KATHLEEN W. BONO,
waewew 20 fOr is recommend approval of the detailed plan 21 C.S.R. No. 84-1423,
21 and the accompanying waivers. Notary Public, DuPage County
22 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Perfect. You got 22
107
1 that, Chan?
2 So I'd like a motion to approve the
3 detailed plan as submitted and the accompanying
4 waivers.
5 Do I hear a motion?
6 MR. JABLONSKI: So moved.
7 MR. KRILLENBERGER: I'll second.
8 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Jim?
9 MR. KRILLENBERGER: Aye.
10 MR. PETERSON: Aye.
11 MR. JABLONSKI: Aye.
12 CHAIRMAN CASHMAN: Aye.
13 MS. CRNOVICH: Aye.
14 MR. WILLOBEE: Aye.
15 (WHICH, were all of the
16 proceedings had, evidence
17 offered or received in the
18 above entitled cause.)
19
20
21
22
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HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

RE: Case A-34-2017 — Applicant: Kramer Foods — 16 Grant Square
Request: Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review in the B-1 Community Business District
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: September 13, 2017

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 15" READING: October 3, 2017

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION

I. FINDINGS
1. The PC heard testimony from the project architect, Mr. Thom Budzik, on behalf of Kramer Foods at 16 Grant Square. He
reviewed the plan to remodel and reorganize its deli, bakery and kitchen area in the grocery store, and as a result, will
affect the front fagade of the building for an increase of approximately 160 SF of interior space. The new facade will use
brick to match the existing brick. The side entrance/exit will be relocated to the center of the storefront.

2. A Plan Commissioner asked if the front door will meet fire code requirements. The applicant responded yes, and that the
new front double doors will increase the exiting capacity.

3. The PC in general, expressed that the request looks nice, and will help improve the flow into and out of the grocery store.

4. Kramer Foods is located at 16 Grant Square in the B-1 Community Business District. There were no comments from the
audience during the PC public meeting on September 13, 2017.

5. The proposed plan is code compliant, and only affects the floor area ratio (FAR), by increasing the area by 166 SF, from
82,029 SF to 82,195 SF. The FAR is/will be 0.26 . The maximum FAR in the B-1 District is 0.35 .

1. RECOMMENDATIONS
Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed exterior appearance and site plan as submitted, the Village of

Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six (6) “Ayes,” and three (3) “Absent,” recommends that the President and Board
of Trustees approve the application as submitted.

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By: , Chairman

Dated this day of ,2017.




VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM

Est. 1873

DATE: October 11, 2017
TO: Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner
FROM: Chan Yu, Village Planner é‘ ==
RE: 4 N. Washington Street — Chase Bank — 1 Wall Sign Replacement (newly illuminated)

Case A-35-2017

Summary

The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from Olympic Sign Co., on behalf of Chase Bank,
requesting approval to replace the existing Northern Trust Bank wall sign at 4 N. Washington Street, in
the B-1 Community Business District.

Request and Analysis

The requested wall sign features illuminated channel letters and the Chase octagon logo. The proposed
sign is 1’-3.75” tall and 7’-0” wide for an area of approximately 9.2 SF. The sign is 11’-6” feet from grade.
The channel letters are black and the Chase logo is blue and light nickel in color.

The black channel letters are proposed to be illuminated by white LEDs, and the blue/nickel colored logo
is also proposed to be illuminated, but by blue LEDs. The requested wall sign is Code compliant. The
applicant will be submitting for a ground sign and on-site informational ground signage in the future.

Process

Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application would require a meeting before
the Plan Commission (PC) and does not require public notification. The PC maintains final authority on
signage with no further action required by the Board of Trustees.

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — Wall Sign Application and Exhibits

Attachment 2 - Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and application location
Attachment 3 - Street View of 4 N. Washington Street and sign location



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
APPLICATION FOR SIGN PERMIT

| Cner

[ame: Olympic Sign Company |
Address: 1130 N Garfield

City/Zip: Lombard, IL 60148
Phone/Fax: (°%0) 652-4106 ;424-6120
E-Mail: 9dragisic@olysigns.com

Guy Dragisic

Applicant

Name: Olympic Sign Co. for Chase Bank
Address: 1130 N Garfield

City/Zip: Lombard, IL, 60148

Phone/Fax: (%) 652-4106 ,424-6120
E-Mail: 9dragisic@olysigns.com

Guy Dragisic

Contact Name:

Contact Name:

ADDRESS OF SIGN LOCATION: 4 N Washington St.

ZONING DISTRICT: B-1 Community Business District

) n- s sE L LT EL
SIGN TYPE: Wall Sign - C-HAAU &L LE *{llumination cannot exceed 50 foot-

ILLUMINATION Internally llluminated candles as defined in Section 9-106(E)(b)

Sign Information: Site Information:
Overall Size (Square Feet): 8.75 ( 15" X 84" ) Lot/Street Frontage: Gl el a0 N aRlgSLEY

Overall Height from Grade: 116" Ft. Building/Tenant Frontage; e >t °" & Weshingion St40

Proposed Colors (Maximum of Three Colors): Existing Sign Information:

o Black Business Name:
@ Nickle

3) Blue

Size of Sign: Square Feet

Business Name:

Size of Sign: Square Feet

I hereby acknowledge that I have read this application and the attached instruction sheet and state that it is correct
and agree to comply with all Village of Hinsdale Ordinances.

P—~13~17

Signature of Applicant Date

Signature of Building Owner Date

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY - DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE

Total square footage: x $4.00=0 (Minimum $75.00)

Plan Commission Approval Date: Administrative Approval Date:

Attachment 1



CHASE ©

9/12/2017

To Whom it may concern:

Per the Purchase and Sale Agreement executed July 17" 2017, JPMorgan Chase is the contract
purchaser of the property commonly known as 4 North Washington in Hinsdale, IL.

Excerpt of Purchase and sale agreement attached.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please call.

Sincerely,

Terrence Roswick

//&«/w e Y. /&\

Terry Roswick, VP

JPMorgan Chase Bank NA

Consumer Bank Distribution Network
10 S. Dearborn Street, Floor 15
Chicago, IL 60603-2300

312 325--3301

Attachment 1



PSA Header and Signature Blocks:

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

THIS PURCHASIE AND SALE AGREEMENT ("Agreement”) is made and entered into
this HM day of July, 2017, by and between 4 North Washington Hinsdale, LLC, an Illinois
limited liability company ("Seller"), and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, a national
banking association ("Purchaser").

PURCHASER:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, NATIONAI
ASSOCIATION, n national banking associati

| By = 2 e
Nime:( . dohe G inkey © T
U fide: _ |

i Date* ﬁ/? l72. Jl}l]

;mun

SNORTTW ASHING TON HINSDAL
FIL R KRTTR |} TP (TIPS AT
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MANUFACTURE AND INSTALL ONE (1) SET OF INTERNALLY-ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS

LETTERS:
FACE: .177” P-95 CLEAR ACRYLIC WITH 3M #3635-222 BLACK PERFORATED VINYL ON 1ST SURFACE AND
(1) LAYER OF #3735-50 DIFFUSER VINYL ON 2ND SURFACE.
TRIMCAP : 1" METALLIC SILVER JEWELITE
RETURNS: .040" x 3" DEEP PRE-PAINTED ALUM COIL.
BACKS: .050” PRE-PAINTED ALUM.
PAINT : IF NOT PRE-PAINTED, PAINT EXTERIOR MATTHEWS
MP-#18101 “CHASE NICKEL", GLOSS (85-90 UNITS),
INTERIOR PAINTED SPRAY-LAT STAR BRITE WHITE LIGHT ENHANCEMENT PAINT.
ILLUMINATION : SLOAN PRISM 7100K STANDARD #701269 7WSJ1-MB WHITE LEDs AND SLOAN POWER SUPPLY
AS REQUIRED FOR PROPER EVEN ILLUMINATION

LOGO:
BACKS & RETURNS: .080" ALUM. BACK WITH STACK WELDED 080" ALUM. RETURNS, 3" DEEP.
LOGO CAN FACE : .080” ALUM. BRIDGE ELEMENTS WELDED TO INSIDE & OUTSIDE RETURNS
PLEX FACE : .118” THERMO-FORMED ARISTECH #6046 BLUE ACRYLIC LOGO ELEMENTS CHEM WELDED TO
3/4” CLEAR PLEX 2ND SURFACE FACES.
ILLUMINATION : SLOAN PRISM #701269 BLSJ1-MB BLUE LEDs AND SLOAN POWER SUPPLY
AS REQUIRED FOR PROPER EVEN ILLUMINATION

INSTALL: LETTERS TO BE FLUSH MOUNTED ON FLAT SURFACES,
INSTALLER TO SUPPLY SPACERS AS REQUIRED FOR UNEVEN SURFACES.

- AR
T 42

Black Light Nickel

Blue

3D YIEW OF OCTAGON

ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS FOR LED ILLUMINATION
As required by standard #2161 , Signtech Electrical Advertising, Inc., exclusively uses secondary Ground fault-Interrupted
(GFI) transformers.
Each Sign MUST have: - A dedicated branch circuit
- Three wires : Line, Ground, and Neutral.
- Wire Size : Min 12 GA THHN Copper Wire.
NOTE: The gauge of the wire is dictated by the length of the run & amperage as per NEC Article 600.
- The ground wire must be continuous & go from the sign to the panelboard ground bus.
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location
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VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM

Est. 1873

DATE: October 11, 2017
TO: Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners
CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner
FROM: Chan Yu, Village Planner é‘ ==
RE: 336 E. Ogden Avenue — Bill Jacobs Group - Relocation of Hinsdale Land Rover Dealership

Exterior Appearance/Site Plan for Renovation of former GM facility - Case A-29-2017
Continuation from September 13, 2017, Plan Commission Public Meeting

Summary

The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review application from Mr. Peter
Nagel, Project Designer on behalf of the Bill Jacobs Group, requesting approval to renovate the existing
former GM training facility at 336 E. Ogden Avenue. The renovation request is for the Hinsdale Land
Rover dealership at 300 E. Ogden Avenue to relocate to the subject property. Auto dealerships are a
permitted use in the B-3 General Business District.

On September 13, 2017, the architect presented to the Plan Commission (PC), and reviewed the
proposed building facade, floorplan, fence options, lighting and landscape plan. There were
approximately 5 to 10 neighborhood residents who expressed concerns at the public meeting. For
example, noise concerns were referenced for the following reasons:
1) A resident reported the current Land Rover dealership at 300 E. Ogden Avenue receives
deliveries at 2 AM, and is worried it could also occur at the new location.
2) The south east overhead garage doors will continuously open and close during service hours,
which will expose tire noises and power tool noises from the service area, which includes 20
car lifts and a car wash space. To this end, the residents voiced strong opposition to utilizing
the south east overhead doors. The PC Chair requested for a potential floorplan revision
that could possibly allow the service traffic to exit out of the east side of the building.
3) A few residents referenced the sound from the PA system, used at the current Land Rover
dealership as being noisy. The applicant has noted at the meeting and neighborhood
meeting (Oct. 2, 2017) that the new dealership would not use a PA system.

A few neighborhood residents expressed concerns about additional traffic. For example, traffic concerns
were referenced for the following reasons:
1) A resident is worried about test drives exiting east from the dealership and south into the
residential neighborhood.
2) A resident is concerned about the line-of-sight for exiting east from the dealership, due to
the current and potential trees and shrubs of the landscape plan. This was emphasized due
to pedestrians using the nearby sidewalk.
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Lighting and fence aesthetics were also topics of concern by the neighbors. For example, these concerns
were referenced for the following reasons:

1)

2)
3)

4)

5)
6)

A few residents believed the current lighting/photometric plan is too bright and will be a
light pollution problem.
A resident has reported current lighting on the building is causing a glare onto his property.
A resident who lives directly adjacent (south east) to the subject property is requesting
careful consideration regarding the aesthetics/materials of the new fence. His request is to
keep the fence height to 6 feet, due to how close the property line is to the home.

A resident who lives directly adjacent (south west) to the subject property is also requesting
careful consideration regarding the aesthetics/materials of the new fence. However, his
request is to construct the tallest fence possible (8 feet, per the code) to buffer against the
light and sound.
The fence should have additional purposes, including sound and light buffering.

In general, the neighbors and PC expressed that the current perimeter landscaping needs
improving.

On October 2, 2017, the applicant presented updated site plans and elevations to staff and area
residents at a neighborhood meeting. The residents expressed the same above concerns. Based on the
meeting, the applicant has revised and submitted the plan, as summarized in Attachment 1, applicant
cover letter dated October 4, 2017. Some revision examples include:

1)

A continuous row of 6 feet tall arborvitae hedge added to the entire length of the south
fence. The arborvitae will be on the south of the fence, which is in front of the fence from
the residents’ view.

A new fence height configuration for a 6-foot height at the 808 Oak Street lot line, with an
increase to 8-feet tall for the remainder of the fence (westward).

3 fence options are presented, and include a composite Trex fence (wood look), SimTek
fence (stone look) with an STC-26 sound rating, and a cedar fence with horizontal boards.
Relocated refuse location from the south of the subject property to the west, in between the
2 existing elevated loading docks. A solid enclosure illustration is included on the elevation
sheet and notes it will be painted grey, to match the building fagade.

Updated photometric plan with average lighting data added (4.7 foot-candles) and 0 at the
southern residential lot lines. For context, the Illuminating Engineering Society of North
America (IESNA) holds security lighting for automotive dealerships to a 10 foot-candle
average, and 75 foot-candle max for the first row of vehicles (feature display area) adjacent
to a major arterial. The code calls for luminaire cutoffs to prevent direct glare onto any
public or private property or streets, and no more than .5 foot-candle at any residential lot
line.

Lighting wall packs removed, including 2 from the south, 3 from the west and 1 from the
north of the building.

New low plantings planned for the southeast green space area (per the concerns of the
resident to the south) with illustration.



VILLAGE OF

MEMORANDUM

Est. 1873

Request and Analysis

Per the applicant, the subject property is 157,687 SF, which is 3.62 acres. The existing GM training
facility building is 1-story, 20-foot tall building with a footprint of 37,115 SF. The proposed plan will
change the northeast corner of the front facade, and will reduce the building footprint slightly to 36,955
SF. Currently, there is a canopy feature that extends past the brick facade wall at the west of the
building. The applicant plans to reconstruct the canopy area, to be flush with the existing brick facade
wall by reducing the canopy overhang, but increasing the height 2-inches to match the existing building
height of 20 feet. Thus, the front yard setback will not change. The rear and side yard setbacks will also
not be affected since the plan will not expand the existing height or building envelope.

The applicant has submitted two options to update the building facade for the September 13, 2017, PC
meeting (“sunshine gray” and “champagne”). However, for the October 11, 2017, PC meeting, the
elevation plan only includes sunshine gray metal panels; horizontal in nature, on the north, east and
west elevations, and painting the existing brick walls in the color gray. Installation for new planar glazing
windows and removing/replacing the existing overhead doors are shown on the north, south, east and
west facades.

The site plan shows a new resin walkway with green hedge between the front facade and sidewalk on
Ogden Avenue. The landscape plan references two trees in the front yard to be removed, along with
four dead trees on the west side yard. There will be six new trees planted for a net zero loss in trees.
The site plan will utilize the existing parking lot, however, with newly added interior green island
plantings. The total lot coverage will be reduced slightly by 1.1 percent, and there will be a reduction of
21 parking spaces. The existing subject property perimeter green space will be preserved and
maintained at its current size and setback. There is an existing fence along the southeastern portion of
the subject property, between Oak Street and Franklin Street that is adjacent to the residential (R-4)
zoning district to the south. The revised plan includes a continuous row of 6 feet tall arborvitae hedge
for the entire length of the south fence.

A building floorplan is included, and shows the new use of the existing building for the Land Rover
dealership its service center. The floorplan legend references space for showrooms, sales offices, parts
storage, service reception and service areas. Scaled drawings of cars are also shown to give spatial
context. The site plan has been updated for the October 11, 2017, PC meeting to accurately depict 2
additional existing overhead doors on the south wall of the building. This was reviewed at the October 2,
2017, neighborhood meeting.

The public meeting notice requirements have been followed per section 11-604(E), since the
nonresidential parcel is within 250 feet from a single-family zoning district. It abuts the R-4 Single Family
Residential District to the south. There has been 2 neighborhood meetings thus far, on September 8,
2017, and October 2, 2017, organized by neighbors on Franklin Street. The applicants presented the
plans and answered questions by residents and staff at both meetings.

Process

Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the PC shall, at the public meeting on the application for
exterior appearance review, allow any member of the general public to offer relevant material and
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nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the public
meeting, the Plan Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form
specified in subsection 11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of the
exterior appearance and site plan based on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 11-
606.

Attachments:

Attachment 1 — Summary Cover Letter and updated Application Request and Exhibits (packet)
Attachment 2 - Zoning Map and Project Location

Attachment 3 - Birds Eye View Map

Attachment 4 - Street View of 336 E. Ogden Avenue



The.\edmond Company

Innovative Approach. Unique Solutions.

October 4, 2017

Village of Hinsdale

Community Development Department
c/o Chan Yu, Village Planner

5550 East Ave

Countryside, IL 60525

Re: Plan Commission Public Hearing for Jacobs Land Rover, October 2017

Mr. Yu, Mr. McGinnis, Board of Trustees, Plan Commissioners, et al:

As requested, the memorandum below outlines the updated status and revisions to the documents originally
dated 09.13.17 for the September Plan Commission meeting, to be reviewed in continuation on October 11, 2017.
These revisions are all in response to questions, comments, or requests from the September Plan Commission
meeting and October 2" neighborhood meeting in Hinsdale made by various commissioners, residents, and the
village planner.

1. Existing ALTA Survey
a. Nochange.
2. Architectural Site Plan
a. Extent of green space/hedges indicated to match landscape plan.

b. Light poles are identified per photometric plan.

c. Overhead doors on south side of building identified per revised floor plan.

d. Parts Loading docks are identified and loading areas are dimensioned.

e. Dumpster Enclosure has moved to west side of building between loading docks. Material has
changed to match building as per revised Elevations (page 8).

f.  Number/location of handicap parking stalls per village ordinance (2 shown, 4 previously)

g. Number/location of total parking stalls (266, previously 264; still 49 employees + customer)

h. Fence along extent of southern property border to be entirely new; entire existing fence to be

torn down and replaced. See also Fence 3D images added to this set (pages 5A, 5B, 5C).

3. Photometric Site Plan

a. (2) wall packs on south, (3) wall packs on west, and (1) wall pack on north of building removed.

b. (1) poles on south property line and (2) light poles on west property line added.

c. “Luminaire Schedule” revised and average lighting levels/notes added.

i. Lighting cut sheets are provided separately from this packet.

4. Landscape Plan

a. Extent of trees and hedges to be pruned/removed is clearly indicated on plan.

b. Replace low plantings in southeast green space.

c. All fencing on south property line now indicated as new; see fence images.

d. Continuous row of “arborvitae” hedge added along entire length of fence.

5. Proposed Fence (3D images). We are presenting (3) options for consideration. All (3) options indicate a 6’
fence at 808 Oak St property line, then steps up to 8’ fence for remainder of fence. See landscape plan for
extent of additional plantings along fence.

a. Option A—composite fence. This is a “wood look” fence made out of plastic for easier
maintenance. Product is “Trex” and sample will be brought to the meeting.

b. Option B —acoustical fence. This is a “SimTek” brand fence suggested by plan commission at last
meeting. It has an STC-26 sound rating.

c. Option C- cedar fence. This was initial option presented to neighbors on October 2" and has
been slightly modified since that meeting.

Page 1 of 2
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6. Schematic Floor Plan

a. Most recent floor plan approved by owner is provided. Most notably there are an additional (2)
overhead doors on the south wall of the building. This plan was reviewed at October 2"
neighborhood meeting and explained that these doors are critical to facility operations and
would produce no noise any greater than the current ambient noise of the highway or planes

flying overhead from O’Hare.
7. Schematic Exterior Elevations

a. Only the option where existing brick is maintained and painted is being pursued now.
b. Annotation has been revised and clarified.

c. New dumpster location and materials is indicated.
8. Additional items not in packet
a. Lighting cut sheets

b. Exterior building material samples and fence sample(s) will be brought to plan commission

meeting.

We hope this description of revisions helps facilitate the Plan Commission’s review of our submittal and look
forward to the meeting on October 11™. We appreciate the detailed review and input from the Village staff and

residents, and thank you again for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

Peter Nagel, AIA
Project Designer
The Redmond Company

CC: Jerry Mortier, co-applicant, The Redmond Company

Page 2 of 2
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5.

. EXISTING ALTA SURVEY

. ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

. PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN

. LANDSCAPE PLAN

PROPOSED FENCE

A. COMPOSITE FENCE

B. SIMTEK ACOUSTIC FENCE
C. CEDAR FENCE

. SCHEMATIC FLOOR PLAN

. SCHEMATIC ELEVATIONS

Jacobs Land Rover

Plan Commission Submittal

N

THE REDMOND COMPANY
- DESIGN - CONSTRUCTION
« CONSULTING+ MANAGEMENT

W228 N745 Westmound Drive
Waukesha, Wisconsin 53186
tel 262.549.9600 fax 262.549.1314

Innovative Approach. Unique Solutions.
www.theredmondco.com

10.11.17
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B — ALTA / NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

[.
NE Corner of / PARCEL 1:

NE 1/4 of LOTS 14, 15, 16 AND 71 (EXCEPT THE SOUTH 60 FEET AND EXCEPT THE WEST 30.0 FEET THEREOF) IN HINSDALE HIGHLANDS, BEING A
Section 1-38-11 SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 8, 1922 AS DOCUMENT 155000, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

A PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER 279 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID QUARTER

SECTION; THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 48 MINUTES WEST, 938.41 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 16 IN HINSDALE HIGHLANDS,
<= FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID QUARTER 300 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES 48
MINUTES WEST 200 FEET; THENCE NORTH PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID QUARTER 300 FEET TO AN IRON STAKE ON THE SOUTH
LINE OF OGDEN AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 79 DEGREES 48 MINUTES EAST 200 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINQIS.

279’

Deed

MAGNETIC

PARCEL 3:

LOT 13 AND THE SOUTH 60 FEET OF LOT 71 (EXCEPT THE WEST 30.0 FEET THEREOF TAKEN FOR PUBLIC STREET) IN HINSDALE HIGHLANDS,
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 8, 1922 AS DOCUMENT 155000, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

COMMON ADDRESS: 336 E. OGDEN AVENUE, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS

ss 0 NG
i e
2 //
//
TABLE "A” ITEMS
billmm 1. monuments noted at all boundary corners
o Be/g’nn’ng d © ‘ 2. address observed is detailed on the survey
mnni
/Opfﬂgﬂfce/ 2 3. per Federal Emergency Management Agency only
the described property lies in Zone "X", area determined
to be outside 0.2% annual chance floodplain
4, gross land area = 3.62 acres
@ Ba,b. zoning classification is B—3 General Business District
7 @ except for the south 60" of Lot 71 which is R—4
k B—3
. J Maximum building height = 30" or 2 floors
O setbacks 100" from c¢/I of Ogden Ave "0
o, 35" from Oak Street § PROFESSIONALY,
id d =10
¥ m - fleoiiig::d Z oo STATE OF ILLINOIS) STATE OF
3% 5outn & 0 , _\ 0 ,?:3 ‘ Maximum Floor Area ration = 0.50 COUNTY OF DUPAGE)) > " Noseas
= = vty St g - s . : : TO: NAPLETON INVESTMENTS PARTNERSHIP, LP
(typ.) S s South 60 of Lot 71 is R—4, single Family an lllinois Limited Partnership.
o 3 R—4 LAND ROVER HINSDALE, LLC
I= v Maximum bu||d|ng he|ght = 3 stories CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
il B setbacks front 35’
® g N sideyard = 8’ THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED
3 > © > reoryard = 25 WERE MADE IN ACCORDAN/CE WITH 2011 "MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL
. . REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEYS”, JOINTLY
ey = Maximum Floor Area Ratio = 0.24 + 1200 s.f. ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4,
x © 6a, 6b, 7a, 7bl, 7¢, 8, 9, 11, 13, 14 and 16 THEREOF.
§ eS 7a. exterior dimensions of building is noted THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON AUGUST 18, 2016
3 . 7b1. building footprint = 37,115 s.f. DATE OF PLAT: AUGUST 19, 2016.
> £
§ m ; 7b1. building height is texted along the southerly wall of the building WI %/‘ﬂﬁﬁé—
3 “ 3 MICHAEL L. KRISCH
il E-‘ 8. substantial features are located and shown on the survey ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 35-2501
~ LICENSE EXPIRES NOVEMBER 30, 2016
) 9. parking lot striping is faded and worn through out
there are 223 reqular striped parking stalls
and 3 handicap striped parking stalls as best as can be determined
S,6 11. underground utilities are shown per observed evidence
IN 9 i © in the field and from record gas company records
Owner: * 7 L ‘ 13. names of adjoining owners, determined through tax records,
Land Rover Hinsdale, LLC | g |* < are detailed on the survey drawing.
2
09-01-210-038 ) —x<{v/ g = 14. described property is located at the intersection of 2 NOTES: SymbO/S Legeng
j right of ways as shown on the survey drawing CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY Sanitary Sewer Manhole

NORTH
300.0°

Landscape Light / Post
Light Pole

L Y4

14. covenants, conditions and restrictions contained in deed

Electric Transformer

® reoorded November 9, 1926, as document 224623, conveying
‘ lot 71, relating to use, cost and location of buildings to be

|
00
™
. L{) ~
2 M g S
IIE S N Al | - ' , . COMMITMENT NO. 131513, Storm Sewer Wornl
o il 16. no observed evidence of recent earth moving work, building EFFECTIVE DATE JULY 20, 2016 Cateh Bosm
I 5 construction or building additions observed in the process WAS USED IN PREPARATION b et
N Lot 16 < of the survey work OF THIS SURVEY i
_E—__ S @% *;G ere ydran
ES a ater Valve In Vault
2 . A Q: Water Valve
o) — - S © B—Box
. § ] 23.07 Parking Stall i Sign
H 5 = (typ.) Street Si
x 5 TITLE COMMITMENT SCHEDULE B ITEMS reet Sign
< S Gas Valv
£ -3 PERTAINING TO SURVEY MATTERS as Valve
=
| ) —

Utility Pedestal

\

erected on the land Telephone Manhole

83.78’

/
Lo ’n/\
> i =
A 2L

\

Electric Handhole

¢IZI®HEIH-:0(-%@JG|6@@QID©@

15. covenants, conditions and restrictions contained in deed recorded

May 16, 1961 as document R61—6902 and any amendments thereto: Troffic Signal Pole

until and unless said lot 71 is reclassifiedas a Commercial District or —X Pole Anchor
fence——1 o Industrial District under the village zoning ordinance, neither & wi”tyDFO'et_W/ Overhead
o General Motors Corporation nor any successor in title to the property E— et
l ~ X hereby conveyed shall without permission granted by ordinance of said storm Sever
| i " village: — >— >—Sanitary Sewer
Land Rover Hinsdale, LLC B \ ) . . . — W— W— Watermain
09—01-210—037 (% | Found Iron ips 1. use any part of said lot 71 for purpose which at the time is lawful ‘
N 0.17'North of Cornel . . . . . . — G — G — Gasmain
" 4O solely in Commercial or Industrial Districts under the village —
fence N no(\l“ o Zoning Ordinance — E — E —Underground Electric Line
98North N\ | _ % X \ 2 © o . — T — T —Underground Telephone Line
. 1 g / /. 2. construct any building upon said lot 71 NV —TV— Underground Cable Television
/ \\f"iﬁ{"é’ iron Pige — Lot 11 3. make or}y portion of §oid lot 71 available for the use of the general public —_FO—FO— Underground Fiber Optic Line
~4dkast of Comer o ‘(\O\ for parking motor vehicles M —FV— Force Main Sewer
R - ’(; ey 4. permit the parking of motor vehicles within 6 feet of the south line
Lo ] f said lot 71 or within 35 feet of its east line
t of = . . of sai .
por © PARCEL 3 2 | !
20’ Rearyard/Building Line by Zoning Classification GRAPHIC SCALE
30 0 15 30 60 120
1= 4 ) ] B 1/
AN X X N Z : . h Z Vi
Nvood fence Record =|297.95" o = ( IN FEET )
fZ?T%\l.eorth N 2.9'North 1 inch = 30ft.
2.65Fast Lot |70 cross i Walk Prepared for: ED NAPLETON DEALERSHIP GROUP
gﬂu.‘? golsrf nofpigc?rner gnl lesﬂcés'eﬁfefcgg °r
e . KRISCH LAND SURVEYING, LLC
Jeffrey & Elizabeth Lesniewicz Tracey A. & Nicholas M. Skokna PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM LICENSE No. 184-006866
09-07-217-005 09-01-271-015 P.O.Box929 s  Plainfield, IL. 60544 =  Phone: 630.627.5589
Fax: 630.627.5594
SURVEYING — CONSULTING — CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT
No. | Date Revision Description By: Scale: 1”7 = 30’ |Drawn: MLK |Chk'd: |GDK File# |CAD File: 92120—-2016

m.krisch@gdkls.com

Attachment 1


nagep
Typewriter
1.


REQUIRED PARKING SPACES

NET FLOOR AREA / 275 =
13,271 SF / 275 = 49 SPACES
2 ADA SPACES PER IL STATE CODE

32 EMPLOYEE + 17 CUSTOMER = 49 SHOWN
2 ADA SPACES SHOWN

266 TOTAL STALL COUNT

N yd
LOGHTON OF LIGHT 6 ' 7 D ‘
_ RESIN WALKWAY e (1) [ (1o
: - NV, {
__"#/ﬁffgﬁa; O o /
NEW FRONT FACADE , L DISPLAY
,// =
E [ ]
| @ /
O [ ]
/

(-
\

DUMPSTER _
ENCLOSURE &

POLE OR BUILDING
LIGHT, SHIELDED @

PROPERTY LINE, TYP.

AREA OF NEW ADDITI®N

CUSTOMER

PARCEL 1

| PARTS LOADING
| 12W x 25L x 14H

r
| PARTS LOADING
| 12W x 25L x 14H

EMPLOYEE
/

0
GARAGE DOOR
L e aGEm. v L] ® = * O o - e ¢ G e r L

9,

OVERHEAD SERVICE

10

e

S VI JE

LINE OF NEW FENCE

Ny /.//L

]

60 -

]

OVERHEAD

L OVERHEAD DETAIL CAR WASH DOOR
BAY DOORS

100' BUILDING SETBACK

INVENTORY

PARCEL 2

/
I |
TS INVENTQRY
e
|
i PARCEL 3
/
N ; INJENTDRY
\\//‘f
/
/
f SERYICE

LINE OF NEW FENCE

PARCEL 3

1

Architectural Site Plan

!

!

Jacobs Land ver

EXISTING HEDGE TO BE REMOVED,
SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

EXISTING HEDGE TO BE
REMOVED AND REPLACED,
SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

THE REDMOND COMPANY
« DESIGN+- CONSTRUCTION
* CONSULTING- MANAGEMENT
W228 N745 Westmound Drive

Waukesha, Wisconsin 53186
tel 262.549.9600 fax 262.549.1314

Innovative Approach. Unique Solutions.
www.theredmondco.com
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0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.¢
+ + + g T + + + > E3 3 E3 3 E3 E— E3 3 E3 3 E3 T —— 3 3 7 + + + +
0.0 0.0 0. g9 0.8 oo 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.4 d. 3 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.l 0.3 0.3 0.1 0 0.1 0.1 off o ofo 0. 0.0 0
LIGHT POLE, SHIELDED
0.0 0.0 0 1.8 5=~ 1.5 0.4 0.1 0.0 .2 3.1 3.0l 1.0 1.3 .4 4. 3.9 | 4.7 5 1B 1.0 2.8 3.2  1l2 \N0.4 0.2 ] .0 0. 0.0
.8 13.4 33, 36.0 [[30.1 1.4 275 1.5 26.4 1.1 3018 35.90 33.5 [14.2 %29 0. 0.2 H0 .0 offo 0.0
2.9  12.8 39.p 43.2 | s0.6 Ye.1 26f6 11.7| 25.5f k6.0 aols 42.9] 0.8 |13.6 31 0.8V 0.2 #1 ] o.0 H.0o 0.0
.0 0.0 | 0.0 K K 0.2 0.8 2.7 0.9 27. %2.9 [ 24.9 HYs.9 21Jo Mo.8| 20. b6.a  24al7 23.0] 27.7 [11.4 2f9  o.s| Yo. 1) 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 | 0.0 0.3 0.8 2.6 7.0 10. 92.4 [13.8 .1 11d7 0.1 1200 fiz.e 14fl3 3.1 711.0 [7.4  2fe 0.9l f O 0. 9.0 § 0.0 0.
0.0 .0 0.0 0.3 0.8 2.0 3.1 B.8 B.1 6.0 6.3 7.6 9.5 o5 B.8 7.9 6.3 4.5 3.5 2.2 0.9 0.4 o7 0.1 0.0 0
0.0 .0 0.0 0.4 0.7 1.1 1.3 1.7 2.7 4.0 %.3  11.0 17.4 fo9.8 f"e6.5 10.4 BH.8 3.0 1.8 1.3 o.8 0. 0.2 0. 0.0
.0, .00 0. 0.3 ols 0.5 0.6 3.k  Ole 2.9 P1.6 F29.7 | 28.0] 21.5] B.3] 3.1 . offs 0.5 70 0. o1 0.0
0.1 .o 0. 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 2.6 1{.8 7.0 fo.7f [a4.9 | 39.1| 26.4 T2. 3.1 2. ofls 0.3 2 F 0.2 .1 0.0
HLE
Ept
0.1 .0 0.0 02 0.2 0.3 0.4 | 0.7 1.4 ar 6.4 HYr.s5 3. 43.2 | 43.1| 26.7] 4. 3.4 2. offa 0.9 0. 0.1 J0o.1 0.1
0.1 (0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 .5 |0.9 1.4 a6 1.3 18.5 scll1 [42.7 | 33.8| 26.6] 10. 3.3 . oz oo @ o o1 f .1 0
0.1 (0.1 0.0 .1 0.2 0.3 b.6 1.2 2.5 5.1 10.8 21.0 P.4 26.9 26.4 15.5 6.3 2.3 0.9 0.3 ¥{. qd.1 0.1 0.1 T
0.1 .1 0.3 b.7 1.7 4.1 9.3 7.5 24.1 Ps.9 21.0 13.5 7.3 3.5 1.6 0.7 0.3 0 0.1 o | v.o
0.1 0.1 0.3 ] 0.8 2.4] 7.1 96 2f.9 fr.of Bo.s [27.7 [12.7] 5.1 ] 2.2] 1. b'? .3 @M1 I o.1 dol| 0.0
0.1 0.2 0.3 | 0.9 B.1] folo Psf1 3.5 h3.2 (27.9 | 17.6| H.2 1.7 0.1 0.3 0.2 1) 0.1 0.0 | 0.0
0.1 0.2 0.4 | 7.1 3.3 12d2 Psle 4.2 ha.1 [29.5 | 18.5) B.1 T1.5] 0.1 o.p)] D. 0. 0.1 fo.0!| D.«
0.2 0.3 0.6 | 1.4 3.5 9.4 26l0  3f.5 85.6 [28.1 | 13.7] 4.2 | 1.3] 0.4 o2l of1 M of1 o.of v.o| DO

0.2 0.4 0.9 2.0 4.3 B.9 17.5 28.0 26.4 17.7 7.7 2.8 1.0 0.4 0.2 ] .0 !
.2 o.5 1.4 3.4  B.0 5.4 22.7 25.0 f21.1 14.3 B.0 1.0 1.8 0.8 0.3 0.1 Ko 0.0

0.2 0.6 1.9 | 5.8 1s. 283 310 3).6f 9.3 4.6 [5.9 2.5 | 1.1 ] o.5] 0.3 0.1 L1 ] 0.0
0.2 0.6 2.3 | B.5| %a4. B4)3 aale af. Mo.8 Po.5 [6.4 2.0 | 0.7 0.3] 0.2 0.7 . 0.0
Eebe]
0.0 0.0 0.2 0.6 2.4 | 9.4 923. 381 a3l a7 2.7 Po.o [6.3 1.7 0.5 0.2 0.1 ) 0. 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.2 0.6 2.1 7.0 P1.p +291|8 a0l A .3 *2“8.4 16.6 [4.9 |%.5 | 0.4 o.2] .1 a1l do 0.0
0.1 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.5 4.1  10.9 22.0 23.7 4.2 18.9 B.4 3.1 1.1 0.4 b.1 0.1 0. 0.0 0.
.6 0.7 0.6l 0.5 0.3 0.1 { .5 0.6 1.0 2.1 4.3 7.3 "10.1f9.5 6.4 3.5 1.1 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 fgo Jo.o go
7.5 1.5 1.3 1.4 0.3 0.1 ¢ 1.7 1.8 1.2 | 1.1 t.e] 2.4 M. 207 .1 .4 Jo.s 0.5 | 0.2] b.1|ff b.1 .0f 0.0 .0
0.0 0.0 [Jo.0 0.1 fJo.1 0.1 | 0.3 71.3] ™. M. 7.9 0.4 .1 .0 9.0 ofo ob.0 .0 0.1 0.4 7.9 4.5 B0 6.0 5.1 4.8 2.3 | o.9| o.7] 0.4 0. olls .7 h.6 [o.4 0.3 | 0.2 o.1 *0.1 0. 0.0 N0l 0.c
0. 0.0/ 0.0 0.1 0.1 J0.1 | 0.3 Oo.sf 1. 0. 7.9 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.6 2.0 3.3 3.8 4.9 3.9 3.4 2.2 | 0.9 0.4 .73 0 o2 q.2 h.2 fo.2 0.2 | 0.1 o.1/f ofof§ oo .0
_ . . . . . . . o o o o o o o o . o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o .0 0.
.0 .0 .0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 b.0 0.0 0.0 “b.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 ¥ 0.0 0.0 0,0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 1.1 %.5 1.7 7.8 2.0 1.9 1.4 0.7 0.2 0.1 9.0 .0 0.0 .0 b.0o 0.0 0.0 ©v.of fo 0.0 /0
LINE OF NEW FENCE
Calculation Summary
.0 ©.0 9.0 .0 0.0 .0 0.0 .0 .0 0.0 [0.0 0.0 0.0 .0 b.0 0.0 : 0.0 0.0 .0 0.0 f0.1 f 0.1 ) ©0.3] b.65 0.9 1.5 1.8 2.1 1.8 1.3 b.6 0.2 0.1 .0 ©b.0 v.0 V.0 .0 0.0 b.0 0.0 off v.o H.o Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min | Max/Min
CalcPts 1 I1lluminance Fc 2.56 46.1 0.0 N.A. N.A.
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + I+, + + + + + + + + + + H +, + + + + + + + + + + + + Overall paved area Illuminance FC 4 ° 67 46 ° l O ° O N -A- N -A-
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 L0 0. 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0. 0. o/s Lo .3 .9 2.7 1.4 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 . 0.0 0
Luminaire Schedule
. N . N . A N . N . . N . N . N . . N . N . N Symbol Qty Label Arrangement LLF Description
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 3.6 3.5 2.1 0. 0. 0, 0fo -0 -0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0, 0. 0.0 ( ] 3 OF SINGLE 0.900 | CREE - ARE-EDG-3MB-DA-02-E-UL-STD-525-DIM
E 2 oc-Cc TWIN 0.900 | CREE - ARE-EHO-4MB-HV-24-E-UL-STD-700-DIM
. . . . . - X - . . . . ) . . . . . . . 3 OA-C BACK-BACK 0.900 | CREE - ARE-EHO-5S-HV-24-E-UL-STD-700-DIM
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 3. 2. C 041 -1 -0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0. -0 0 0.0 [-] 4 WB SINGLE 0.900 | MC GRAW EDISON - GWC-AF-02-LED-E1-SL3
B 1 WA SINGLE 0.900 | MC GRAW EDISON - GWC-AF-02-LED-E1-SL4
1 OH-C BACK-BACK 0.900 | CREE - ARE-EDG-3M-DA-04-E-UL-STD-350-DIM
9.0 .0 0.0 0.0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 ©b.0 9.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0 Y. g4 2 g.3 .1 0" 0.0 [ 0.0 0. ¥ 0. 0. 0Jo 0. h.o 0. 0.0
f o —
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.0 .0 .0 .0 0.0 9.0 .0 b.0 0.0 J0b.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 .4 1.4 1.1 .6 0.2 ‘0.1 f0.0f 0.0f v.0f D. 0. 0.0 —% 0.0 T 0.0 Toffo 0.0
.0 .0 .0 0.0 0.0 .0 0.0 0.0 { 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 offo o.0 0.0 0.0 Loff 0.0 .0 0.0
.0 0.0 0.0 0.0/ ©v.0o 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 J0.3 [0.3 45 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0b.0 0.0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 fo.0 0.0
.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.1 J 0.1 4 0.1 . 0. ofo ofo ¢.o p.o 0.0 /Jo.o 0.0 v.0 0.0 o.0ff 0.0 .
LINE OF NEW FENCE
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
0.0 0.J0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 . .0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0. 0. 0.0 ¢ THE REDMOND COMPANY
* DESIGN - CONSTRUCTION
0.0 .0 .0 0.0 0.0 .0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 .0 0.0 ] S = 0.0 0.0 .o 0 0 0.0 « CONSULTING: MANAGEMENT

W228 N745 Westmound Drive
Waukesha, Wisconsin 53186
tel 262.549.9600 fax 262.549.1314

Innovative Approach. Unique Solutions.
a c o S a n ove www.theredmondco.com
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@ PROPOSED LANDSCAPE PLAN

LANDSCAPE PLAN GENERAL NOTES

* % PLANT MATERIAL SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE PLAN IS DEPICTED AT MATURE GROWTH. * *

1. AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO HOURS PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION, CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY UTILITY LOCATIONS AS GIVEN BY THE ELECTRIC, GAS, TELEPHONE, WATER,
SEWER, AND CABLE TELEVISION COMPANIES, UTILITIES OR ENTITIES. REVIEW WITH OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE SITE MECHANICAL, SITE ELECTRICAL AND LIGHTING, SITE
GRADING AND DRAINAGE, SITE IRRIGATION AND ALL OTHER DRAWINGS PERTAINING TO UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATIONS. RECORD SET OF INFORMATION THE SAME
AS IN POSSESSION OF OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE. ALSO REVIEW OWNER'S "MARK SETS" OF ALL OF THESE DRAWINGS IN POSSESSION OF THE CONTRACTOR OR OWNER.
MARK ALL SUCH UTILITIES ON THE SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING. COORDINATE WITH OWNER BEFORE AND DURING CONSTRUCTION. REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO ANY
SYSTEM THAT IS CAUSED BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR AT NO COST TO OWNER.

2. ALL PLANTINGS SPECIFIED FOR THE JACOBS LAND ROVER PROJECT PLANTING TABLES SHALL COMPLY WITH STANDARDS AS DESCRIBED IN AMERICAN STANDARD OF
NURSERY STOCK ANSI Z60.1 2014 AND ANSI STANDARDS FOR PLANTING 2012.

3. ALL DEVIATIONS FROM THE APPROVED JACOBS LAND ROVER PROJECT PLANS SHALL BE NOTED ON THE RECORD DRAWINGS BY THE CONTRACTOR AND MAY BE
EXECUTED ONLYWITH PRIOR APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE. VERBAL AGREEMENTS OR REVISIONS WITHOUT A CHANGE
ORDER WILL NOT BE RECOGNIZED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER.

4. ALL PLANTS MUST BE BID AND SELECTED PER THE SPECIES SPECIFIED ON THE PLANS. THE SIZES OF PLANT MATERIAL LISTED HEREIN IS A MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE SIZE.
ADDITIONALLY, IF EXCESSIVE PRUNING REDUCES THE CROWN THE PLANT SHALL BE REPLACED.

PROTECT PUBLIC FROM CONSTRUCTION WITH BARRIERS AND BARRICADES.

ALL AREAS THAT WERE DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND AREAS NOT COVERED WITH PAVEMENT, BUILDING, PLANTING BEDS, OR TREE PITS ARE TO BE TOPSOILED 3"
DEEP (MIN.) AND SHALL BE SODDED/SEEDED WITH SPECIFIED LAWN GRASS. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE COST PER SQUARE YARD FOR ADDITIONAL SEED
OPERATIONS AS MAY BE POSSIBLY REQUIRED TO REESTABLISH ADJACENT TURF GRASS AREAS WHICH MAY BECOME DAMAGED DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS OR
TO REPAIR DAMAGE DONE BY OTHERS.

7. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FURNISHING ALL MATERIALS, TOOLS, EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND PLANTS NECESSARY FOR PROPER PLANTING AND INSTALLATION OF ALL
LANDSCAPE MATERIAL.

8. QUANTITIES ON PLANT MATERIALS LIST ARE FOR CONVENIENCE OF BIDDING ONLY. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PLANTS SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE PLANS AND
COVERAGE OF ALL AREAS DELINEATED. THE PLANS ARE TO SUPERSEDE THE PLANT LIST IN ALL CASES.

9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL ESTIMATING AND BIDDING, ALL AREAS, QUANTITIES MATERIALS SHOULD BE FIELD VERIFIED WITH SITE CONDITIONS.

10.  WHERE DISCREPANCIES OCCUR BETWEEN THE LANDSCAPE PLANS AND/OR ARCHITECTURAL AND/OR THE CIVIL DRAWINGS (AND ANY OTHER SITE DRAWINGS) THE
DISCREPANCIES MUST BE BROUGHT TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS ATTENTION FOR COORDINATION AND RESOLUTION.

11.  ALL DISEASED, NOXIOUS OR INAPPROPRIATE MATERIALS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE PROPOSED SITE PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION AND DURING THE
MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

12.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE THE SITE FREE OF CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS.

13.  ALL LAWN AND PLANTING AREAS SHALL SLOPE TO DRAIN A MINIMUM OF 2% UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE AND REVIEWED WITH OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR FINAL
APPROVAL.

14.  FINISH GRADES FOR SHRUB AND GROUND COVER AREAS SHALL BE HELD 1" BELOW TOP OF ADJACENT PAVEMENTS AND CURBS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE
PLANS. REFER TO LSP1.2 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

15.  ALL PERENNIAL, ANNUAL AND GROUND COVER AREAS TO RECEIVE A BLEND OF ORGANIC SOIL AMENDMENTS PRIOR TO PLANTING. TILL THE FOLLOWING MATERIALS
INTO EXISTING TOPSOIL TO A DEPTH OF APPROXIMATELY 8". A DEPTH OF 12" IN TREE PITS. PROPORTIONS AND QUANTITIES MAY REQUIRE ADJUSTMENT DEPENDING ON THE
CONDITION OF EXISTING SOIL. REFER TO LSP1.2 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

PER EVERY 100 SQUARE FEET ADD:
ONE - 2 CUBIC FOOT BALE OF PEAT MOSS, 2 POUNDS OF 5-10 -5 GARDEN FERTILIZER, 1/4 CUBIC YARD OF COMPOSTED MANURE OR OTHER COMPOSTED,
ORGANIC MATERIAL

16.  ALL SHRUBS TO BE POCKET PLANTED WITH A 50/50 MIX OF COMPOSTED, ORGANIC MATERIAL AND EXISTING SOIL. INSTALL TOPSOIL INTO ALL BEDS AS NEEDED TO
ACHIEVE PROPER GRADE. REMOVE ALL EXCESSIVE GRAVEL, CLAY AND STONES. REFER TO LSP1.2 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

17. PLANT ALL TREES SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN FINISHED GRADE AT ROOT FLARE. BACK FILL HOLE WITH 2/3 EXISTING TOPSOIL AND ORGANIC SOIL AMENDMENTS SPECIFIED IN
NOTE 15. AVOID ANY AIR POCKETS. DISCARD ANY GRAVEL CLAY OR STONES. REFER TO LSP1.2 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

18.  ALL TREES TO BE INSTALLED, STAKED AND GUYED ACCORDING TO DETAILS. REFER TO ANSI STANDARDS FOR PLANTING 2012 AND DETAILS ON LSP1.2 FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION.

19.  PROVIDE A 4-0"- 5-0" DIAMETER MULCH RING ALL LAWN TREES.
20.  ALL PLANTINGS TO BE WATERED AT THE TIME OF PLANTING, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION AND UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT AS REQUIRED.

21.  WHERE SPECIFIED, ALL PLANT BEDS, PITS AND TREE RINGS ARE TO RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF 2'-3" DRESSING OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD OAK BARK MULCH SHAVINGS FREE
OF GROWTH, WEEDS, FOREIGN MATTER DETRIMENTAL TO PLANT LIFE OR GERMINATION INHIBITING INGREDIENTS. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE A SAMPLE TO
OWNER FOR APPROVAL. CONTRACTOR TO TAKE CARE WITH INSTALLATION NOT TO DAMAGE OR COVER PLANTS. REFER TO LSP1.2 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

22.  LAWN INSTALLATION: CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH AND PREPARE TOPSOIL (3" MIN) AND SEED BED (REMOVE ALL STONES 1" OR LARGER), APPLY STARTER FERTILIZER AND
SEED UNIFORMLY. PROVIDE A MULCH COVERING SUITABLE TO GERMINATE AND ESTABLISH TURF. EROSION CONTROL MESH SHOULD BE USED IN SWALES AND STEEP
GRADES WHERE APPLICABLE. METHODS OF INSTALLATION MAY VARY AT THE DISCRETION OF CONTRACTOR. IT IS HIS/HER RESPONSIBILITY TO ESTABLISH AND GUARANTEE
A SMOOTH, UNIFORM, QUALITY TURF. IF STRAW MULCH IS USED AS A COVERING, A TACKIFIER MAY BE NECESSARY TO AVOID WIND DAMAGE.

23. REQUIRED SEED MIXES:

PREMIUM 60 GRASS SEED MIX REINDER'S (847) 573-3300
20% AMERICAN KENTUCKY BLUE GRASS
20% ALPINE KENTUCKY BLUE GRASS
20% LANGARA KENTUCKY BLUE GRASS
20% VICTORY CHEWINGS FESCUE
10% FIESTA Il PERENNIAL RYE GRASS
10% CUTTER PERENNIAL RYE GRASS

APPLY AT A RATE OF 175 POUNDS PER ACRE. REFER TO SUPPLIERS SPECIFICATIONS AND INSTALLATION CUT SHEETS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

24.  DURING THE INITIAL "30 DAY MAINTENANCE PERIOD" THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE AND ON-GOING PLEASANT VISUAL ENVIRONMENT
WHEREAS ANY PLANT WHICH IS NOT RESPONDING TO TRANSPLANTING OR THRIVING SHALL IMMEDIATELY BE REPLACED. NEW LAWNS SHALL WATERED AND REPAIRED
AND WEEDS MUST CONSTANTLY BE REMOVED, NO EXCEPTIONS WILL BE GRANTED.

25.  ALL NEWLY PLANTED TREES AND SHRUBS ARE TO RECIEVE AN APPLICATION OF AN ANTI-TRANSPIRANT SPRAY THAT WILL EFFECTIVELY REDUCE THE WATER LOSS OF
TRANSPIRATION OF PLANT MATERIAL AND REDUCE THE STRESS OF TRANSPLANTATION. IT IS RECOMENDED AS PART OF THE ONGOING MAINTENANCE THAT ANY
BROADLEAF EVERGREEN AND CONIFEROUS TREE AND SHRUBS (EXCLUDING ARBORVITAE) RECIEVE AN APPLIATION OF AN ANTI-DESICANT SPRAY TO REDUCE THE LOSS OF
MOISTURE DUE TO WINTER DESICCATION.

26. MAINTENANCE. THE OWNER SHALL TEND AND MAINTAIN ALL PLANT MATERIALS IN A HEALTHY GROWING CONDITION AS PER THE APPROVED PLAN. PLANTINGS SHALL BE
REPLACED WHEN NECESSARY AND KEPT FREE FROM REFUSE & DEBRIS. ALL PLANTING MATERIAL WHICH IS DYING OR DAMAGED BEYOND RECOVERY SHALL BE REPLACED
WITHIN SIX (6) MONTHS OR BY THE NEXT PLANTING SEASON, WHICHEVER COMES FIRST.

MAINTENANCE NOTE:

MAINTENANCE IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROPERTY OWNER TO MAINTAIN REQUIRED LANDSCAPING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MUNICIPALITY'S PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE CODE AND AN APPROVED MAINTENANCE PLAN. THE MAINTENANCE MUST INCLUDE, AT A MINIMUM, METHODS FOR PROVIDING THE
FOLLOWING:

NECESSARY IRRIGATION (if REQUIRED)

INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT,

PROPER FERTILIZATION

TREE CARE AND PRUNING, SHRUB TIP CLIPPING AND SHAPING AS REQUIRED,

REPLACEMENT OF LOST VEGETATION, AND ALL DISEASED, DAMAGED, OR DEAD MATERIAL WILL BE REPLACED BY THE END OF THE FOLLOWING PLANTING
SEASON IN PERPETUITY.

6.  WEED MANAGEMENT AND BED CARE.

27.  LANDSCAPE / SITE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY LOCATIONS OF EXISTING TREES AND SHRUBS BE SALVAGED AND CLEARLY TAG THEM WITH MARKING TAPE AND
CONSTRUCTION FENCE.
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LANDSCAPE / SITE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY LOCATIONS OF EXISTING TREES TO BE SALVAGED AND CLEARLY TAG THEM WITH MARKING TAPE AND CONSTRUCTION FENCE.
LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE INSTALLATION OF NEW PLANT MATERIAL AND THE COORDINATION WITH EXISTING TREES TO BE SALVAGED.

@ MULCH BED AREA. DRESS WITH 2"-3" OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH. TAKE CARE WITH INSTALLATION NOT TO DAMAGE OR COVER PLANTS. REFER TO
GENERAL NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

@ SEEDED AREAS OF TURF GRASS. REPAIR ANY AND ALL TURF DAMAGE FROM THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS AS REQUIRED. IT IS VERY IMPORTANT TO FOLLOW THE
MANUFACTURERS INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING THE TURF GRASS FOR PROPER GERMINATION AND SURVIVABILITY OF THE SEED MIX. ALSO REFER TO GENERAL
NOTES FOR PREPARATION OF TOP SOIL AND SEED INSTALLATION. REFER TO GRADING PLAN FOR FURTHER INFORMATION. ALSO REFER TO GENERAL NOTES AND
SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

SCALE: 1" = 30'-0"
. North @ MULCHED 4'-0" DIA. TREE RING BED AREA w/ EARTHEN BED EDGE (SHOVEL POINT) LANDSCAPE EDGE AS REQUIRED. DRESS WITH 2"-3" OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK
Proposed Plant Material Table MULCH. REFER TO LSP1.2, GENERAL NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.
Broadleaf Decid T Conifer E Shrub @ EARTHEN BED EDGE (SHOVEL POINT) LANDSCAPE EDGE. TYPICAL ALL PLANT MATERIAL AREAS. DRESS WITH 2"-3" OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH. REFER TO
roadieat beciavous free onirer Evergreen >hru GENERAL NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.
Quantity Code Name | Symbol | Scienfific Name Common Name Planting Size Quantity Code Name | Symbol | Scientific Name Common Name Planting Size (5)  REMOVE EXISTING TREE IN ITS ENTIRETY. GRIND STUMP AND ROOT FLARE TO 12 " BELOW GRADE, MINIMUM. REMOVE ALL DEBRIS AND ROOTS AS REQUIRED AND REPAIR
2 ActaM 0 Acer tataricum subsp. ginnala 'Mandy' Red Rhapsody Amur Maple 21/2"-Cal - B&B 3 JuscM * Juniperus scopulorum 'Medora' Medora Juniper 3'-4'-B&B TURF AND PREP FOR NEW TURF OR PLANTING BED AS REQUIRED. REFER TO DETAIL FOR 4/ LSP1.2 FOR TREE PROTECTION DETAIL.
B ) - B . . . 3 - - @ REMOVE EXISTING BROADLEAF DECIDUOUS SHRUB ROW IN THIS AREA IN ITS ENTIRETY. REMOVE /GRIND STUMPS TO 12" BELOW GRADE, MINIMUM. REMOVE ALL DEBRIS
2 Mast @ Magnolia stellata Star magnolia 21/2"-Cal - B&B 7 JupfSG {;1 Juniperus x pfizeriana 'MonSan Sea of Gold Juniper 18"-24"-B&B AND ROOTS AS REQUIRED AND REPAIR ADJACENT TURE AND PREP FOR NEW TURF AS REQUIRED
2 SyreGW @ Syringa reficulata subsp. pekinensis 'Great Wall Great Wall Tree Lilac 21/2"-Cal - B&B 83 ThocAB @ Thuja occidentalis 'Art Boe' North Pole Arborvitae 6' - B&B @ REMOVE EXISTING BROADLEAF DECIDUOUS SHRUB ROW FOR THE FIRST 10-0" AWAY FROM THE CURB CUT DRIVE LANE IN ITS ENTIRETY. REMOVE /GRIND STUMPS TO 12"
] Exig () | Existing to Remain Existing o Remain Existing S ondleat Evercroen Shrop BELOW GRADE, MINIMUM. REMOVE ALL DEBRIS AND ROOTS AS REQUIRED AND REPAIR ADJACENT TURF AND PREP FOR NEW TURF AS REQUIRED.
. . . 9 v EXISTING BROADLEAF DECIDUOUS SHRUB ROW IN THIS AREA TO REMAIN. SHRUBS TO BE PROPERLY THINNED AND PRUNED TO A HEIGHT OF 36" ABOVE GRADE.
6 Extg () Existing to be Removed Existing to be Removed Existing . L - .
= Quantity Code Name | Symbol | Scientific Name Common Name Planting Size @ EXISTING BROADLEAF DECIDUOUS TREES TO REMAIN. TREES IN THIS AREA ARE TO BE PROPERLY PRUNED TO REMOVE ANY HAZARDOUS BRANCHES AND PROMOTE AND
Broadleaf Deciduous Shrub 4 BuGM O Buxus 'Green Mountain' Green Mountain Boxwood 24" - 30" - Cont ENCOURAGE STRONG AND HEALTHY GROWTH.
Quantit Code Name | Svymbol Scientific Name Common Name Planting Size REPLACE LOW SHRUB BORDER THIS AREA. REFER TO PLANT TABLE FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
Y Y - — - 9 Perennial Grass @ PLANT MATERIAL TO BE INSTALLED BY LAND ROVER OFF PROPERTY ONTO CITY OWNED OR PRIVATE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY AS DEPICTED THUS. THE MAINTENANCE AND
25 CostF Cornus stolonifera 'Farow! Arctic Fire Red Twig Dogwood 18" - 24"- Cont Quantity Code Name | Symbol | Scientific Name Common Name Planting Size WATERING, INCLUDING WATERING FOR INITIAL PLANT MATERIAL ESTABLISHMENT IS TO BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CITY /PRIVATE RESIDENCES. REPLACEMENT OF NEWLY
' ' ' ; " INSTALLED PLANT MATERIAL INSTALLED OFF PROPERTY ONTO CITY OWNED OR PRIVATE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY FOR DYING, DAMAGED BEYOND RECOVERY OR DEAD IS
30 HymaR % Hydrangea macrophylla 'Robert Let's Dance Moonlight Hydrangea 18" - Cont 15 PaViHR e% Panicum virgatum Hot Rod' Hot Rod Switch Grass 1-Gal - Cont THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CITY /PRIVATE RESIDENCES.
: HypaB Hydrangea paniculata Bobo Bobo Hardy Hydrangea 18" - 24™ Cont 41 PeallB if;;% Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Little Bunny' Little Bunny Fountain Grass 1-Gal - Cont
9 PhopTwW Q Physocarpus opulifolius 'SMPOTW Tiny Wine Ninebark 18" - Cont 18 Sphe % sporobolus Heterolepis Prairie Dropseed 1-Gal - Cont
8 RomeCC % Rosa 'Meiriansois' Candy Cane Cocktail Rose 18" - 24"- Cont @ UNDERGROUND SEWER AND UTILITY INFORMATION AS TO OBTAIN LOCATION OF
. T . . N Perennial v SHOWN IS OBTAINED FROM THE RECORDS OF PARTICIPANT'S
’ Rk ‘:3 >praca x fre Hont e Hoht Sprec 18- Cont Quantit Code Name | Symbol Scientific Name Common Name Planting Size I MUNICIPALITY AND LOCAL UTILITY COMPANIES, THE UNDERGROUND
2 Vicasl % Viburnum carlesii 'J.N. Select A" Spice Island Koreanspice viburnum 24"-30"-B&B Y Y 9 / ACCURACY OF WHICH CAN NOT BE GUARANTEED OR FACILITIES BEFORE YOU
- - - - 19 EcBa Echinacea x 'Balsomsed' Sombrero Salsa Red Coneflower 1-Gal - Cont .% X CERTIFED TO. DIG IN ILLINOIS CALL THE
4 ! ! " ' H H
47 weflv {ué | Weigela florida 'Verweig My Monet Weigela 15"-18"- Cont " oG Fomorocalls x Nosferaty Trophyiaker Nosterato Dayil 2172 po i////j THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITY INSTALLATIONS AS CHICAGO UTILITY ALERT
- Extg O Existing to Remain Existing fo Remain Existing Y Y TO OBTAIN LOCATION OF PARTICIPANT'S UNDERGROUND FACILITIES BEFORE YOU DIG IN ILLINOIS. THE SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY ARE APPROXIMATE. THERE NETWORK-1-312-744-7000,
_ Extg (D Existing fo be Removed Existing fo be Removed Existing 13 HeRS Hemerocallis x 'Ruby Spider’ Ruby Spider Daylily 41/2" pot ILLINOIS UNDERGROUND UTILITY FACILITIES DAMAGE PREVENTION ACT REQUIRES A MINIMUM OF 3 MAY BE OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATIONS wwwi.ilinois1call.com r(now what’s below.
— 12 HeGS Heuchera x hybrida 'Grape Sodd' Grape Soda Coral Bells 1-Gal - Cont DAYS NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE, (NOTINCLUDING SATURDAY, SUNDAY OR LEGAL HOLIDAYS) WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT SHOWN. OR ca“ before vou dic
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